ADVOCATE'S GUIDE TO COURT ADVOCACY IN NEVADA

NCEDSV.ORG

GUIDE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

NCEDSV would like to thank Amber Huff, Tonya Yell, and Stephanie MacDonald, Esq. for their assistance and input of this guide.

This project was supported by Subgrant No. 2021-VAWA-28 awarded by the state administering office for the Office on Violence Against Women, U.S. Department of Justice's STOP Formula Grant Program. The opinions, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this publication/program/exhibition are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the views of the state or the US Department of Justice

CONTENTS

Guide Acknowledgements	1
Introduction	3
The History of Court Advocacy	3
What Is the Unauthorized Practice of Law?	5
Applying Facts to Law/Giving Legal Advice	6
Filling out forms for clients	7
What is Court Advocacy?	7
Victim Rights in Nevada	9
Crime Victims Bill of Rights	9
Marsy's Law	12
Sexual Assault Bill of Rights	17
Nevada Revised Statutes	20
Advocate Privilege	20
Legal Systems	21
Criminal Legal System	21
Civil Legal System	26
Legal Aid Resources in Nevada	29
Preparing For Court	
Domestic Violence Protection Order Application	
Special Considerations when applying for DV POs.	
Separation Violence	
Firearms	
Teens	
How to Assist with Clients without UPL	
Sexual Assault Protection Order Application (SA TPO)	
Sample Application	

INTRODUCTION

Court advocacy is a specialized area of victim advocacy that calls for court advocates to follow *specific* procedures and ethical boundaries. While every jurisdiction is different, there is some information that all court advocates must understand and be able to share with their clients.

Much of court advocacy is learned with a first client. Not unlike being tossed in the deep end of the pool to learn how to swim! Much is also learned by being taught on the job by another advocate. Often, new advocates learn where protective order applications are kept, where to go to file the application, and how to tell clients about the result. However, some information **doesn't** get passed on: like how to help someone fill out an application, answer clients' questions, and why advocates do things in specific ways. Also, bad habits can be passed on from advocate to advocate.

The Nevada Coalition to End Domestic and Sexual Violence (NCEDSV) developed this guide to provide new advocates with an ongoing reference on providing court advocacy that meets national best practices and Nevada statewide program standards. This guide builds and expands on the Court Advocacy Modules of NCEDSV's Advocate Certificate Program, including information on the history of advocacy, the unauthorized practice of law, how to provide court advocacy, and annotated forms to help advocates assist victim-survivors in negotiating the civil and criminal legal systems. As always, the NCEDSV technical assistance team is here to assist you in developing your court practice. Please feel free to reach out to NCEDSV at <u>info@ncedsv.org</u> for support.

THE HISTORY OF COURT ADVOCACY

The victim's rights movement had its origins in the turbulent 1960s and the idealism of the 1970s¹. However, the women's movement galvanized services for victim-survivors of domestic violence and sexual assault in the United States. The feminist leaders saw sexual assault and domestic violence and the lack of response from law enforcement and the courts as critical issues to be addressed². The feminist movement spawned the development of domestic violence shelters and rape crisis centers throughout the 1970s and early 1980s.³

The movement's leadership understood that providing services for victim-survivors was different than services for other crimes. There was an understanding that the legal

¹ Office of Victim of Crime, The History of the Crime Victims' Movement in the United States, December 2004, <u>https://www.ncjrs.gov/ovc_archives/ncvrw/2005/pg4c.html</u> accessed August 31, 2021. ² *Ibid.*

³ Ibid

definitions (if there were any) didn't adequately define their clients' experience. Beyond the physical, --survivors experienced emotional and mental injury as well.

Local leaders of primarily volunteer-run shelters in Nevada lobbied for laws criminalizing domestic violence and sexual assault in relationships. However, these laws thrust victimsurvivors into a complex, sometimes hostile, and regularly confusing criminal justice system. With a lack of access to attorneys (often due to financial constraints), volunteers from local programs began to assist victim-survivors with the applications for protection orders and provide court accompaniment as moral support for clients. Frequently trained volunteers were survivors who themselves had weathered the process. Courts and attorneys did not universally welcome these actions. It took further legislation (that was hotly debated and opposed by some) to allow community-based advocates to provide court advocacy for victim-survivors. Even then, advocates were not always welcome.

Today, while services have been professionalized and access to legal services has increased, the needs for court advocacy far outweigh the availability of services. Community-based court advocates help victim-survivors by providing information about the court systems, assisting with self-help legal forms, and providing moral and emotional support while navigating the different court systems.

Community-based advocates provide a much-needed service, especially for victimsurvivors who may not be comfortable accessing police or court services. These victimsurvivors may be undocumented persons who fear deportation or their partner who financially supports them. They may have substance use issues, a mental health illness, or a criminal history and feel they won't be credible with law enforcement. Additionally, community-based programs are often the sole providers for emergency shelter, 24-hour hotline assistance, and support groups.

Most police departments and district attorney offices employ advocates. These systembased advocates are the primary contact for victim-survivors within a criminal justice agency. They are equally dedicated to supporting the survivor and can provide referral access to the same support services that community-based advocates do. Additionally, system-based advocates are usually not attached to emergency shelter or hotline services but have access to information regarding the status of an investigation or trial that community-based advocates don't have.

It is important to note that system-based advocates have a different level of confidentiality than community-based advocates. System-based advocates have the ethical responsibility to inform their agencies of any pertinent or exculpatory information⁴ learned while

⁴ Exculpatory information means information that may prove the innocence of an accused person.

working with the victim-survivor. Depending on the information, the case may be dropped. Additionally, any exculpatory information will also be turned over to the defense counsel. Like community-based advocates, they share the same responsibility to report the abuse of children, vulnerable adults, or the elderly.

If a victim-survivor is involved with the criminal legal system, it's possible that they are working with both a community-based and a system-based advocate. Advocates should develop and maintain a positive working relationship with their law enforcement and prosecution based advocate counterparts. Each type of advocate has a vital role in supporting a victim-survivor. They each have subject matter knowledge about their own roles and work settings that benefit their counterpart. It's always the victim-survivor's choice as to which advocate they wish to work with on which issues.

Regardless of differences, domestic or sexual assault program court advocates are important for victim-survivors. Advocates provide much-needed information about selfhelp applications and legal documents for victim-survivors representing themselves and court systems and procedures. Advocates also connect victim-survivors to legal resources, including pro-bono attorneys.

WHAT IS THE UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE OF LAW?

Before learning what Court Advocates are supposed to do, it is crucial to understand what Court Advocates are *not* supposed to do because it can sometimes rise to the level of the crime of the Unauthorized Practice of Law (UPL).

The Nevada Revised Statutes define the UPL as:

A person shall not practice law in this state if the person:

- (a) Is not an active member of the State Bar of Nevada or otherwise authorized to practice law in this state pursuant to the rules of the Supreme Court; or
- (b) Is suspended or has been disbarred from membership in the State Bar of Nevada pursuant to the rules of the Supreme Court.⁵

The statute isn't very helpful because it doesn't define what activities or actions make up the unauthorized practice of law. The practice of law is very complex-and involves more than knowing a statute. It is also researching case law and interpreting the statute in light of judicial decisions. It is analyzing situations and understanding how one decision can affect several other legal options. There isn't much black and white in the law; it is fact specific and characterized by subtle and complex features. Yes, victim-survivors can represent themselves, but they are at a disadvantage not having the attorneys' tools and resources.

⁵ Nev. Rev. Stat. § 7.285 (1999)

This is why advocates need to be very mindful in their interactions with clients. Advocates have access to information that many clients may not have. Still, advocates don't have all of the information that attorneys do. Advocates also can have a lot of influence over their clients, so advocates should provide information to empower clients to make their own decisions.

Common acts of UPL where advocates may accidently cross the line are detailed below.

APPLYING FACTS TO LAW/GIVING LEGAL ADVICE

A crucial function of court advocacy is to provide legal information. Legal information is broad, general information that applies to everyone. However,-once an advocate talks specifically about the legal options for one client *based on the facts of the client's case*, it crosses the line into the UPL.

For example, a married client with children receives a protection order, then the advocate says, "Perfect! Now you should file for divorce." The advocate has crossed the line from advocacy to UPL. There are many legal considerations for victim-survivors about if and when to file for divorce based upon what a client wants to do. There are custody and safety considerations too. These considerations should be explored with an attorney. Advocates do not have the expertise or the authority to have those legal conversations with clients. However, advocates can always have safety conversation with clients. It's not empowering to tell a client what they **should do** instead of giving them their legal options and referrals.

Advocates should never tell a client how the court should rule or what the final outcome of their case should be. There are many factors the court or jury can use to make a decision. No one can or should ever state they know how a case will be decided. Some words and phrases that are warning signs that an advocate may be giving legal advice are:

- You should
- You need to
- In my opinion
- You could
- I think

Always think, "Can I give this answer to any client?" If the answer is yes, you are fine. If the answer is no, you are probably crossing the line from advocacy to UPL. If a client is asking specifically for legal advice, advocates should let the victim-survivor know that the questions they are asking can have many consequences, good or bad, on other legal issues they may have. Programs should try to develop relationships with local attorneys and legal aid agencies who may be willing to provide consultation services. Having regular ongoing

meetings with legal aid staff can be very beneficial for community-based advocates. High risk client referral, barriers to legal remedies for victim-survivors, or procedural issues are common concerns where system-based advocates may be useful.

FILLING OUT FORMS FOR CLIENTS

While filling out a form may sound simple, every answer on a legal application is a legal determination and can have lasting repercussions. The incorrect answer can result in perjury or, in immigration cases, removal (deportation). **Please note:** If an advocate does not have specific immigration training and has no attorney supervision, they should not be assisting clients with immigration forms.

Clients should be the ones writing and filling in the application form. An advocate should only assist a client when there is no other option; for example, if the client is injured, there are language/literacy challenges, or if the process is being handled over the phone. Ideally your program will have discussed with the court in-your jurisdiction how and when they will accept an advocate assisting in filling out forms and how the court wants to be informed of this. Examples of this are: some jurisdictions want the advocate to initial every question; others may want a cover letter explaining why the advocate is assisting.

When assisting a client with filling out the application, the advocate should ask the questions *as written* on the form and fill in the *answers using the client's words*. Suppose a client asks for an explanation of a question, advocates may give generic examples but never use specific instances from a client's experience. At no time should an advocate "help" a client by adding information that wasn't introduced by the victim-survivor. Towards the end of this guide, there are sample protection order applications for domestic violence and sexual assault.

Other examples of UPL

Here are some other less common actions that can constitute UPL:

- Negotiating claims and advising clients whether or not to accept a settlement;
- Doing legal research and drafting legal documents;
- Conducting legal presentations and answering legal questions without attorney supervision.

WHAT IS COURT ADVOCACY?

As mentioned before, court advocates have an important role in the justice system. Advocates are sources of information and referrals for victims-survivors. One role of a court advocate is to serve as the connection between the victim-survivor and the legal system(s). An advocate may be the link between the victim-survivor and all criminal justice and legal systems. These include law enforcement, District Attorney's offices, the courts, Probation, Parole, and Corrections. Because of this, a court advocate must be able to build and maintain relationships with their community partners while still maintaining client confidentiality. This is important when advocating for a client's rights within a system is necessary.

The court advocate ensures all agencies communicate as required with the victim-survivor and does so with sensitivity and respect.-Similarly, the advocate is also a support person to a victim-survivor in court settings, whether criminal or civil court.

Another aspect of the court advocate role is to provide resources and information to assist the victim-survivor when they make important decisions. When someone has experienced a traumatic event such as intimate partner violence (IPV), there are often many decisions that need to made. Decisions such as, whether to file a police report filing a police report, getting medical attention, or filing temporary protective order. Victim-survivors may consider leaving their partner, finding alternative living arrangements, etc. The IPV history may be such that the victim-survivor is in a place of having to make a permanent decision about the relationship. They may need to get legal advice about divorce.

Still other decisions may need to be made around public assistance, returning to previous employment, or changing employment while taking into account the effect on their minor children. All of these decisions and more must be made by the victim-survivor while possibly still being affected by their trauma response. Perhaps most importantly, the decisions must be made while considering the ever changing safety issues surrounding EVERY decision.

Advocates assist in identifying those decisions that need to be made; provide the victimsurvivor with the necessary information for them to make informed decisions, and help the victim-survivor consider their options. Once decisions are made, the advocate is responsible for supporting the victim-survivor implementation of those decisions. Since they're dealing with someone who has experienced trauma, advocates walk that fine line of presenting those options while supporting the survivor in being empowered after losing that self-determination to their partner.

Given the extent and intensity of support, advocates must be able to mobilize to work with multiple clients experiencing similar trauma. It's important that the first course of business for the advocate is to have and implement a self-care plan that serves them and ultimately the victim-survivors with whom they work.

VICTIM RIGHTS IN NEVADA

Another essential function is to inform the survivor of their rights. Advocates often hear that an accused person has more rights than the victim-survivor. Both the US and Nevada constitutions give particular rights to persons accused of crimes, including the right to an attorney and the right for their attorney to have all of the information the prosecution has in the case.

Until recently, victim-survivors had no constitutional or legislative rights. Sadly, this means in the past in some jurisdictions victim-survivors didn't know what was happening with their cases. Cases were dropped without notification given to the victim-survivors, and many sexual assault victim-survivors never had their forensic exam kits processed. In response to the frustrations of victim-survivors, Nevada passed three pieces of legislation that grant victim-survivors of crime specific rights. These are the Crime Victims Bill of Rights, Marsy's Law, and the Sexual Assault Bill of Rights.

Victim's rights were created to make sure that victim-survivors are treated fairly and well by the legal systems. This is where good relationships with system partners are necessary. It is important to have conversations with your partners about how clients should assert their rights. It could be as easy as picking up a phone and calling. Other partners may have forms or specific protocols. Sometimes, it is having hard or challenging conversations, so having good working relationships are essential.

In order to access many of the victim rights, there are procedures created by law enforcement, the prosecutor's office, and the department of correction/parole and probation. These procedures differ jurisdiction to jurisdiction and court to court. It is *strongly* recommended that advocates take the time to ask and learn about those procedures. These should be written down in a handy place for future advocates to access. Your agency should have copies of all victim's rights laws to give to clients. Reach out to NCEDSV Technical Assistance staff for copies.

CRIME VICTIMS BILL OF RIGHTS

In 1983, Nevada passed the first Crime Victims Bill of Rights⁶, which grants the following:

The right to have their personal information kept confidential⁷.

A victim-survivor has the right for all their personal information to remain confidential by law enforcement and the prosecutor's office. This includes, but is not limited to, a current or former address, which pertains to a victim-survivor, relative, witness, or another person.

⁶ Nev. Rev. Stat § 178-569-178.571

⁷ Nev. Rev. Stat. § 178.5691 (1983)

Advocates have a confidentiality obligation as well. The Violence Against Women Act⁸, Victim of Crime Act⁹, and Family Violence Prevention and Services Act¹⁰ have stringent confidentiality requirements for agencies and advocates. It is essential that advocates follow their agency's protocols including needing a confidentiality waiver or release of information signed by the client with the specific information they want to be released and to whom.

The right to know the status of the case in which they are involved.

System-based advocates are the "go-to" person for victim-survivors when dealing with law enforcement or the district attorney's office in many jurisdictions. If your service area has a system-based advocate, it is always a good idea to establish a good working relationship with them as you will have clients in common. Again, this is also an excellent opportunity for advocates to learn more about each other's system, it's requirements and reasons for their protocols or practices.

If you are in a jurisdiction without a system's advocate, work with your law enforcement and district attorney's office to develop a system on how you can assist and support your client with their case. For example, suppose a detective or attorney are having issues contacting your client. In that case, they can call you and leave a message to pass on. It is important to remember that advocates cannot acknowledge that a particular victimsurvivor is a client, even if the caller already knows. So, advocates should respond with something like, "Based on VAWA confidentiality, I can't confirm if this person is a client. However, if we are in contact with them, I will give them the message." It is crucial to make sure your law enforcement partners know that you can't promise someone will call; however, if the person is a client or in shelter, they *will* get the message. As an advocate, it is also necessary that you have a conversation with your client about why it is necessary to contact law enforcement, *especially* if they have a warrant. In these conversations it's important that the survivor knows that you'll continue to assist them with services, shelter, or other resources regardless of the outcome of the warrant. In some programs the advocate (with a release) can be part of contacting law enforcement or accompanying the survivor to court.

While having a warrant cannot be a barrier to seeking safety, a program cannot harbor someone hiding from law enforcement. As such, they will have to work at resolving the warrant. Programs should have protocols on how that should be done and within what

⁸ 34 USC §12291 (a)(20) & (b)(2) ⁹ 28 C.F.R. 94.115

^{• &}lt;sup>10</sup> 42 U.S.C. 10406(c)(5)

time frame from learning of the warrant. Advocates can provide referrals to attorneys and provide support through the process.

Additionally, suppose your client is having difficulty getting answers about their case. It is appropriate for a community-based advocate to call the detective or district attorney on behalf of a client, *provided you have a signed release of information* for this purpose. It is always best for a client and advocate to place the call together.

The right to be free from intimidation or dissuasion;¹¹

This means that upon notification, law enforcement and the district attorney's office should provide reasonable protective measures if a victim-survivor informs them of harassment by an abusive partner or other people acting on their behalf. Reach out to the local police department or sheriff's office for their procedures. Additionally, if the victim-survivor is being harassed by their employer for participating in a court case, the prosecutor's office can intercede on their behalf. The victim-survivor must request this in writing.

*The right to know when any impounded property can be released*¹²*.*

There are times when law enforcement holds property as evidence. Local law enforcement or the District Attorney's office will give a time frame for the release and the procedures for claiming the property.

The right to receive a witness fee for lawful obedience to a subpoena¹³.

According to the NRS 50.020, witnesses to a case have the right to be reimbursed \$25 per day for their time. Additionally, witnesses can claim mileage from their residence to the courthouse at the county reimbursement rate.

The right to understand the existing victim compensation laws, and, if applicable, receive compensation¹⁴.

All advocates should understand the state Victim of Crime Compensation Fund guidelines. Victim-survivors of domestic violence and sexual assault are eligible for compensation for certain expenses, including medical bills, counseling, wage loss, emergency shelter and relocation, and home security repair.

To be eligible, a victim-survivor must report the crime to law enforcement within five (5) days of the incident, unless they are physically or mentally unable. It's helpful if the program includes this notification early in the client intake process. They must cooperate

¹¹Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.5692 (1983) and Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.5694 (1983)

¹² Nev. Rev. Stat NRS 178.5696 (1983)

¹³ *Ibid.*

¹⁴ Ibid.

with law enforcement in the investigation and prosecution of the crime. The application must be submitted within two (2) years of the crime. For more information, visit the Nevada Victim of Crime Compensation Fund website at <u>www.voc.nv.gov</u>.

The right to a secure waiting area, which is not available to the defendant and their family, when at court¹⁵.

Advocates who regularly attend court with clients should develop a working relationship with the bailiffs at the courthouse or work with the court administrator to address safety concerns. The bailiffs are in charge of court security. So, if a victim-survivor is in the place where the defendant or the defendant's family and friends are waiting, an advocate can ask the bailiff to move the victim-survivor to a safe place.

The right to know when the defendant is released from custody before or during trial, upon written request¹⁶.

Most jurisdictions use Victim Information Network Everyday (VINE) to provide defendant or prisoner status. VINE has an online portal and a phone app. For more information, visit the VINE website at http://vinelink.com. Also, verify with your local law enforcement that they are on the VINE system, and if not, what procedure they require. It will vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

The right to know when the offender is released from prison, upon written request¹⁷. Most jurisdiction use Victim Information Network Everyday (VINE) to provide defendant or prisoner status. VINE has an online portal and a phone app. For more information, visit the VINE website at http://vinelink.com Also, verify with your local law enforcement that they are on the VINE system, and if not, what procedure they require. It will vary from jurisdiction.

Additionally, the Nevada Department of Corrections provides victim notification regarding individuals who are incarcerated. This also includes information about upcoming parole and probation hearings. You can find more information at https://doc.nv.gov/Victims/Home/.

MARSY'S LAW

In 2018, voters enshrined victim's rights into the Nevada Constitution with the passage of Marsy's Law. Marsy's Law does duplicate some rights already granted through the Crime Victims Bill of Rights. There are some additional rights added which will be covered.

¹⁵ Nev. Rev. Stat 178.5696 (1983)

¹⁶ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.5698 (1983)

¹⁷ Ibid.

While Marsy's Law amended the Nevada Constitution and rights granted are constitutional rights, it is important to note the implementation of these rights is no different than those legislatively granted.

To be treated with fairness and respect for his or her privacy and dignity, and to be free from intimidation, harassment, and abuse, throughout the criminal or juvenile justice process¹⁸.

This provision is similar to the first provision in the Crime Victim Bill of Rights. However, this also explicitly references the juvenile justice system. Reach out to your local law enforcement and prosecutor's office to find out how to notify them regarding harassment by a defendant.

To be reasonably protected from the defendant and persons acting on behalf of the defendant¹⁹.

See above regarding harassment and intimidation.

To have the safety of the victim and the victim's family considered as a factor in fixing the amount of bail and release conditions for the defendant²⁰.

The prosecutor's office is the conduit by which the victim-survivor can talk to the court. Again, each prosecutor will handle this differently. A victim-survivor should speak with the prosecutor about their concerns, wishes, and whether they want to speak in court at a bail hearing.

To prevent the disclosure of confidential information or records to the defendant which could be used to locate or harass the victim or the victim's family²¹.

The rights that Marsy's Law creates are designed to ensure that the government systems treat victims in a positive, respectful manner, and keep victims informed. However, community-based advocates must do the same. Community-based advocates have strict confidentiality obligations. It is essential that advocates follow their agency's policies. Suppose an abusive partner finds the victim-survivor, it is important to explore all the ways the abusive partner could have received the information. Keep in mind, most court filings are public record. Protection Orders have a confidential information sheet to keep victims from being tracked by an abusive partner. If there are other court actions, information could have be found there. Things to consider:

- Victim-survivor's (and children's) social media.
- Is the cell phone location turned on?

¹⁸ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(a).

¹⁹ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(b).

²⁰ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(c).

²¹ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(d).

- Do they share a cell phone plan with their partner?
- Was mailed forwarded?
- Could the partner have followed the victim-survivor?
- Did a family member accidentally say something?

At this point, safe shelter and safety planning should be the focus. If there is conclusive proof that there was a leak, then talk to your executive director about having a conversation about the confidentiality concerns with the agency.

To refuse an interview or deposition request, unless under court order, and to set reasonable conditions on the conduct of any such interview to which the victim consents²². Victim-survivors have the right to refuse to be interviewed by police, prosecutor, or opposing counsel. They also have the right to decline a deposition request by opposing counsel or the prosecution.

- This "request" may come by phone, to which the client can say no.
- The request may also come in the form of a subpoena. If a client receives a subpoena *signed by an attorney* for an interview or deposition, they have the right to decline, but they must respond. An appropriate response is, "I am exercising my Nevada constitutional right granted by Marsy's Law to decline to be interviewed or sit for a deposition."

Victims should know that whoever sent the subpoena will most like file a motion with the court and have the court issue a subpoena. If *a judge signed* the subpoena, the victim-survivor *must comply* or risk being held in contempt of court.

*To reasonably confer with the prosecuting agency, upon request, regarding the case*²³. In many jurisdictions, the district attorney or city attorney's victim witness advocate will be the primary point of contact. They can access the case status and provide information to the victim-survivor. It may be more challenging to contact the prosecutor in areas without a victim-witness. If they are not returning calls in a reasonable time, advocates can help, with a release, the victim-survivor in making a call. Again, this is why good relationships are essential in our work.

To receive reasonable notice of all public proceedings, including delinquency proceedings, upon request, at which the defendant and the prosecutor are entitled to be present and of all parole or other post-conviction release proceedings, and to be present at all such proceedings²⁴.

²² Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(e).

²³ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(f).

²⁴ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(g).

The prosecutor's office may require a written request if someone wants to be notified in some jurisdiction. Check on the procedure. Additionally, VINE will allow victim-survivors to access release dates and times.

To be reasonably heard, upon request, at any public proceeding, including any delinquency proceeding, in any court involving release or sentencing, and at any parole proceeding.²⁵

Advocates should discuss the procedure for providing a victim-witness statement for a release, sentencing, or parole hearing with the prosecutor's office.

To the timely disposition of the case following the arrest of the defendant ²⁶. This right may conflict with the right of a defendant to have a fair trial. However, both have the right to speedy trial; the defendant can waive this right. In this conflict, the courts would most likely side with the defendant because there is a liberty issue at stake: the defendant's incarceration.

If the client wants to be involved and informed about the status of the case, the client should contact the appropriate agency. If a client is having difficulty getting a response, an advocate, with a release, can reach out to the agency to get a response.

To provide information to any public officer or employee conducting a presentence investigation concerning the impact of the offense on the victim and the victim's family and any sentencing recommendations before the sentencing of the defendant²⁷. This is another conversation with the prosecutor's office that should occur before you have a client asking about testifying. Sentencing recommendations may come from the prosecutor's office or the Department of Corrections. It is important to understand your county's procedures.

To be informed, upon request, of the conviction, sentence, place and time of incarceration, or other disposition of the defendant, the scheduled release date of the defendant and the release of or the escape by the defendant from custody²⁸.

As mentioned previously, VINE is the primary notification tool for the status of incarcerated individuals. Upon request or contact with a victim-witness advocate, victim-survivors should be able to access the information. Additionally, much of the information is public record. If the court's information is online, advocates can show victim-survivors how to access the information.

²⁵ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(h).

²⁶ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(i).

²⁷ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(j).

²⁸ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(k).

To full and timely restitution²⁹.

Many expenses can be reimbursed through the Victim Compensation Fund when a victimsurvivor has incurred expenses. However, the Victim Compensation Fund does not reimburse some expenses, like property damage. The judge or jury may order the defendant to pay restitution to the victim-survivor in some cases. While someone is incarcerated, the State of Nevada collects funds owed and provides restitution payment to victims. Contact the State of Nevada Department of Parole at 775-684-2614 or email at fiscalservices@dps.state.nv.us for more information.

Once someone leaves state custody, the restitution becomes a civil debt. The victimsurvivor will have to get a judgment from a court and attempt to collect the debt through a debt collector. If a victim-survivor chooses to demand restitution, advocates should have conversations with different safety concerns and if engaging with the former partner in such a manner is safe.

To the prompt return of legal property when no longer needed as evidence³⁰. There are times when property is held as evidence. Local law enforcement or the District Attorney's office will give a time frame for the release and the procedures for claiming the property.

To be informed of all post-conviction proceedings, to participate and provide information to the parole authority to be considered before the parole of the offender and to be notified, upon request, of the parole or other release of the offender³¹.

VINE will notify a victim-survivor if a person who is incarcerated is going to be released. However, if a person who is incarcerated is being considered for parole, the victimsurvivor must inquire with the appropriate parole and probation offices. County Parole/Probation if the sentence is for misdemeanors (less than one (1) year; and Nevada Parole/Probation if the sentence is for felony offices (one (1) year or longer).

To have the safety of the victim, the victim's family and the general public considered before any parole or other post-judgment release decision is made³².

If a victim-survivor is concerned about their safety after the release of someone due to threats during incarceration, they have an opportunity to testify before the parole board. The victim-survivor needs to contact the parole board for the appropriate process.

²⁹ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(l).

³⁰ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(m).

³¹ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(n).

³² Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(0).

To have all monetary payments, money and property collected from any person who has been ordered to make restitution be first applied to pay the amounts ordered as restitution to the victim³³.

If restitution is owed, the victim-survivor needs to contact the State of Nevada Department of Parole at 775.684.2614 or email at <u>fiscalservices@dps.state.nv.us</u> for more information on the process of receiving funds from an incarcerated person.

To be specifically informed of the rights enumerated in this section, and to have information concerning those rights be made available to the general public. ³⁴ Most law enforcement agencies and counties post victim rights on the website and in their offices. Your agency should have all of the victims' rights readily available for clients.

SEXUAL ASSAULT BILL OF RIGHTS

In Nevada, it was discovered that like many other states, law enforcement never processed thousands of sexual assault kits. With a considerable investment of grant resources, Nevada processed their backlog. To ensure sexual assault victims' rights are protected, Nevada passed legislation with time frames for which sexual assault kits are processed.

It is important to remember a victim-survivor has the right to report the crime to the police *or not*. This is a choice for them to make. It is not the role of an advocate to pressure a victim-survivor to make a choice either way. It is the role of the advocate to discuss all options. Even if someone doesn't choose to report a sexual assault immediately, they have up to 20 years to make the report.

Upon making a report and being interviewed or undergoing a forensic exam, the Sexual Assault Bill of Rights then applies to the victim-survivor. Even if the victim-survivor waives a right at some point, they still maintain the right to invoke the right. They retain all of their rights even if they decline to continue working with law enforcement or prosecution³⁵. The Nevada Attorney General's Office has a document that may help explain the Sexual Assault Bill of Rights to a victim-survivor. It can be found on their <u>website</u>.

A victim-survivor has the right to consult with an advocate and to have a support person during a forensic exam and interviews³⁶.

All victim-survivors have the right to have the attendant of their choice at any interview or exam. The "attendant" can be a friend, family member, or an advocate.

NCEDSV.ORG

³³ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(p).

³⁴ Nev. Const. art. 1 § 8A, cl. 1(q).

³⁵ Nev. Rev. Stat 178A.180 (2020)

³⁶ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178A. 170 (2020)

The exception is if a law enforcement official or prosecutor interviews a survivor who is a minor. The interviewer may exclude the attendant *if* the law enforcement official or prosecutor has completed specialized training in interviewing survivors who are minors that meets the standards of the National Children's Alliance, or another national organization that provides specialized training in interviewing survivors who are minors.

All sexual assault victims have the right to a sexual assault forensic exam³⁷. Law enforcement or prosecutors cannot discourage a victim-survivor from getting an exam and must inform victim-survivors of their rights³⁸.

All victim-survivors have the right to a forensic medical exam free of cost. A victim-survivor can request an exam up to seven (7) days after an assault. If a victim-survivor chooses to undergo an exam immediately after the assault, advocates should counsel them not to shower and use the bathroom as little as possible. If they have changed clothes, they should bring the clothes in a clean paper bag. It is important that the bag is paper because both plastic and cotton totes may contaminate evidence. In many cases, advocates will be transporting the victim-survivor to the exam location or arranging transport.

If available, the victim-survivor has the right to a free shower after the exam. Check with the exam facility to see if they have clothing for the victim-survivor to wear after the exam. Most likely, their clothing will be taken as evidence. If the facility doesn't have clothing, programs should partner with local stores to donate appropriate clothes for programs to have on hand for survivors after an exam.

Law enforcement and prosecutors cannot discourage a victim-survivor from reporting or undergoing an exam. If an advocate is made aware of such actions, they should report this to their supervisor. Agency leadership should bring the concern to law enforcement or prosecution leadership.

A victim-survivor has the right to choose the gender of their interviewer³⁹.

Many of the interview questions can be very personal. As such, given the magnitude of sexual assault trauma, victim-survivors have the right to choose the gender of their interviewer if they feel uncomfortable. While advocates should not be speaking for a client, they can suggest a break if they notice the client is upset or uncomfortable. If the victim-survivor mentions they are uncomfortable with the gender of the person interviewing them, an advocate should let the survivor know they can ask for an interviewer of a different gender.

³⁷ Nev. Rev. Stat 178A.190 (2020)

³⁸ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178A.200 (2020)

³⁹ Ibid.

A victim-survivor has the right to retain an attorney⁴⁰.

As we know, sexual assault cases can become very public and controversial even with confidentiality and rape shield laws (laws preventing the media from printing the name of a rape victim-survivor). Even if it isn't a public or high-profile case, a victim-survivor may feel the need to have legal representation through the process. They can, at their own cost, retain an attorney.

A victim survivor has the right to have the forensic exam tested⁴¹. They have the right to know if any DNA was recovered and if there is a match in CODIS (FBI's Combined DNA Index System) ⁴².

A victim-survivor has the right to have the evidence from their forensic exam processed promptly. Law enforcement has 30 days from the receipt of the exam evidence to submit it to a forensic lab for processing, unless the victim-survivor chooses to remain anonymous and not file charges or delays the testing⁴³. The lab has 120 days to test the evidence and send a report to law enforcement.⁴⁴ Forensic kits must be kept for 50 years if a case is unsolved and for 20 years if a case is anonymous and unsolved⁴⁵.

Victim survivors also have the right to know if the exam uncovered any DNA and match in CODIS.

Some victim-survivors may be hesitant to get a forensic exam due to substance use or their own personal history. The Sexual Assault Bill of Rights expressly forbids the use of the forensic exam results to be used in criminal proceeding again the victim-survivor for misdemeanors or substance use⁴⁶.

*Victim-survivors have the right to the reports and information generated by law enforcement and the prosecutor's office*⁴⁷.

A victim-survivor can request, in writing, and law enforcement must provide all information regarding the case free of charge. Law enforcement may redact (blackout) all personal identifying information. Also, a victim-survivor can request, in writing, information regarding their case, including pre-trial dispositions, final disposition of the case, and if convicted, whether the defendant has registered on the Sex Offender Registry.

⁴⁰ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178A.210 (2020)

⁴¹ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178A.220 (2020)

⁴² Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.230 (2020)

⁴³ Nev. Rev Stat, 200.3786 (1) (1999)

⁴⁴ Nev. Rev. Stat. 200.3789 (2) (1999)

⁴⁵ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178A.220 (2020)

⁴⁶ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.260 (2020)

⁴⁷ Nev. Rev. Stat. 178.280 (2020)

NEVADA REVISED STATUTES

Another vital function of a court advocate's job is understanding the law and explaining it to their clients. Remember, never explain the law in relation to the client's situation, but general information that applies to anyone. There are too many statues to refer to for this guide, however, advocates can access the Domestic Violence Legal Compendium and the Sexual Violence Legal Compendium on the <u>NCEDSV website</u>. It does take time to update the compendiums after each session–Compendiums are not updated to the current year, instead, the Legislative summary for each session is listed. Used together, victim advocates can stay advised of the most recent statutes. The NCEDSV technical assistance and policy teams are available to help interpret statutes.

ADVOCATE PRIVILEGE

Advocate privilege prevents agency records from being turned over to opposing counsel or forcing advocates to testify in court about confidential information⁴⁸. If an advocate or agency receives a subpoena, they should follow their agency's procedures. The agency must respond to the attorney issuing the subpoena. Usually, all that is necessary is a response to the attorney stating that the information is confidential and privileged according to Nevada Revised Statute 349.2546-349.2549 and Violence Against Women Act 34 U.S.C. 12291(b)(2). If the attorney files a motion to compel documents with the court, the agency should have their attorney respond to the court that the communication between advocate and client is confidential and privileged under the state and federal provisions.

Often, agencies will receive requests from clients to release files or to have an advocate testify on their behalf in a court proceeding. Advocates should have a conversation with their client about why releasing documents for legal use can be dangerous. If the opposing counsel requests all evidence a victim-survivor's attorney has in their possession, the attorney must turn it over⁴⁹. However, if someone insists on the release of their records with a signed release, the agency *must* release the documents. The released records must be separated from any other records or subsequent records as they are no longer confidential.

⁴⁸ Ibd.

⁴⁹ Nev. Justice. Ct. R. Civ. P. 26 Parties may obtain discovery regarding any matter, not privileged, which is relevant to the subject matter involved in the pending action, whether it relates to the claim or defense of the party seeking discovery or to the claim or defense of any other party, including the existence, description, nature, custody, condition and location of any books, documents, or other tangible things and the identity and location of persons having knowledge of any discoverable matter. It is not ground for objection that the information sought will be inadmissible at the trial if the information sought appears reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. All discovery is subject to the limitations imposed by Rule 26(b)(2)(i), (ii), and (iii)

If an advocate testifies on behalf of a victim-survivor regarding the facts in the case, the client and advocate waive their privilege, and they are subject to cross-examination. Cross examination is not always like it is on television or in movies. It can be a very intimidating process. Advocates have to answer truthfully regardless of the questions asked. This can put advocates in a place where they unintentionally harm a client. As such, advocates and agencies should vigorously oppose any attempt to release of records or testify as a fact witness in a case.

Advocates can act as an expert witness who testifies on the dynamics of domestic or sexual violence. It is unethical to do so on behalf of your client. It is also against best practices to do so in your geographical or service area because it can look like the agency or advocate is in collusion with the prosecution. Advocates always need to remember that victim-survivors are arrested and prosecuted as well.

LEGAL SYSTEMS

Most people have very little involvement with the legal system. Advocates work with victim-survivors who are now thrust into a very complex system with rules and expectations with which they are not familiar. Any time someone is navigating the legal system, they are dealing with some of the most challenging issues in their life while traumatized. Victim-survivors are trying to figure out a complex system, dealing with trauma, having their lives upended, and are naturally overwhelmed. This is where advocates can help.

Advocates can familiarize victim-survivors with court rules and expectations, help them understand court documents, and understand the process they are navigating. Because of the sensitivity of the information shared between victim-survivors and advocates, advocates are afforded legal privilege⁵⁰. There are two legal systems; the criminal system and the civil system. Advocates need to know which system the victim-survivor is involved in or potentially will be involved in. Each system requires knowledge of the different processes and support systems.

Regardless of which system, advocates do not speak in court nor "coach" their client in what to say. When in court, advocates are there to provide moral support.

CRIMINAL LEGAL SYSTEM

The objective of the criminal legal system is punitive, to punish the wrong-doer. Legal action in the criminal system is initiated by the State (the prosecutor's office). The standard

⁵⁰ Nev. Rev. Stat. 349.2546-349.2549

of proof in criminal court is "beyond a reasonable doubt," which means the prosecution must prove to the jury that there is no other reasonable explanation about who and how the crime was committed supported by the evidence presented at trial.

The general steps of a criminal case are reporting, interviewing the victim, arrest of the suspect, charges filed or not filed, defense interview, arraignment, case setting, trial, and sentencing. It is also important to remember that it may take time to complete each step. If law enforcement is waiting for evidence processing, it may take months. Advocates must be prepared for this and be able to address the survivor's emotional responses to waiting, false starts and rescheduling or moving court dates.

Reporting

In some way, law enforcement receives notice of a crime. Either someone called 9-1-1 because a crime was committed, or someone filed a report at the station. If law enforcement responds to a 9-1-1 call, the police will want to talk to both parties and witnesses if available. The person suspected of committing the crime may be arrested at that time.

If someone files a police report at the police station, the report is reviewed and may be sent to the detective for further investigation. Sometimes the detectives will want more information; other times, they may conclude there is enough information to move forward on the case. On both occasions, they may want to interview the victim-survivor. Depending on what the interview reveals, a warrant for the suspect's arrest may be issued or not.

In the case of sexual assault, if a report is submitted to the police within five days of the assault, they will likely request the victim-survivor to undergo a sexual assault forensic exam/rape kit. A victim-survivor does not have to undergo the exam, but if not, the case will most likely be closed at that point. If the victim-survivor does undergo the exam, law enforcement has 30 days to submit the rape kit to the crime lab. The lab has 120 days to process the rape kit. Victim-survivors do have the right to know the results of the rape kit.

In many jurisdictions, community-based advocates are called by law enforcement to the scene of a crime to provide advocate support. Sometimes-"the scene" is at a hospital or a home. If it is at a home and the suspect has not been arrested, advocates should ask the law enforcement officer to stay while the victim-survivor and advocate meet. If the suspect has been arrested, it is still best practice for the law enforcement officer to remain, especially if the advocate doesn't feel safe. In some instances, the suspect may engage their friends or family to intervene with or threaten the victim-survivor.

When the victim-survivor and advocate meet, they need to be in a private location without the law enforcement officer hearing what is discussed. At no time should an advocate tell the officer what is said. If the victim-survivor has information for the officer, they should be the one to give the information. The advocate can support the victim-survivor through the interview.

When an advocate is on the scene, their job is to let the victim-survivor know their options, help them decide their next steps and to safety plan. Their options can be an emergency protection order, shelter, forensic exam, or nothing. Regardless of what the victim-survivor chooses or doesn't chooses to do, the advocate should give the victim-survivor information on how to contact the agency or advocate in the future.

Interview with Victim: An interview with a victim-survivor may happen more quickly if the offender is in custody. The type of interview may be based upon county protocols. Most initial interviews are handled by the local police or sheriff's office at the scene or if it is a sexual assault, at the hospital.

In cases that are self-submitted police reports regarding domestic violence, it may take longer for law enforcement to contact the victim-survivor. When they do, the victimsurvivor can give the officer any evidence they may have, including photographs of injuries, past incidences, voice mail, or emails.

In sexual assault cases, victim-survivors have the right to have an advocate or attendant present for support during interviews; They can assist a victim-survivor in organizing their thoughts but not coach them into what to say. For example: helping the victim-survivor create an outline of events as they remember them. A victim-survivor probably remembers additional details after an event. It is common for people who survived a traumatic event to remember additional details later. The victim-survivor isn't making up new facts, but this is an effect of trauma and advocates should remind the interviewer of this. Advocates can also ask the victim-survivor if they need a break if necessary.

Arrest of Suspect: Arrest and continued in-custody status is determined by the seriousness of the crime, the need to protect the community, and the alleged perpetrator's flight risk. Arrest and release may occur, and formal charges may come later. In battery constituting domestic violence (BDV) cases, the police should identify and arrest the primary aggressor. The primary aggressor is *not necessarily* the person who struck first but the person who poses the most serious, ongoing threat of harm. According to the Nevada Revised Statutes, a law enforcement officer should look at the following:

- Prior domestic violence involving either person;
- The relative severity of the injuries inflicted upon the persons involved;

- The potential for future injury;
- Whether one of the alleged batteries was committed in self-defense; and
- Any other factor that may help the peace officer decide which person was the primary physical aggressor⁵¹.

Charges Filed or Not Filed: For most crimes, except homicide, the prosecutor generally has a time limit for which a crime may be formally filed with the court. This is known as the statute of limitations (SOL). For crimes of sexual assault, the statute of limitations may vary depending on the age of the victim-survivor. For adult sexual assault victim-survivors, the SOL is 20 years. For misdemeanor BDV, the SOL is one (1) year after the assault⁵². For felony BDV, it is three (3) years after the assault⁵³.

Regarding BDV cases, victim-survivors cannot "drop the charges." Once someone is charged with BDV, the state takes the case over. BDV charges are dropped if the prosecutor determines that there wasn't probable cause for the charges or the charges can't be sustained⁵⁴.

Regarding sexual assault cases, in most cases where the prosecutor is going to issue formal charges against an alleged perpetrator, it may occur within six months to a year from the report depending on the pace of the detective's investigation.

Sometimes the prosecutor cannot locate the defendant, but will formally file charges against them to preserve the ability to prosecute the case later.

This is not uncommon when DNA evidence is available but the prosecutor has not yet identified to whom the DNA belongs. If the victim-survivor is a child, some prosecutors may wait until a medical assessment has been conducted. If the victim-survivor is an adult, prosecutors are likely to wait until the results of a forensic exam are returned.

Defense Interview: A pretrial interview that the defense attorney requests with the victim-survivor. Unless ordered by the Court, a victim-survivor has the right to refuse an interview or deposition request and to set reasonable conditions on the conduct of the interview.

During a defense interview, sexual assault victim-survivors have the right to have an attendant or advocate at the interview. While domestic violence victim-survivors don't

⁵¹ Nev. Rev. Stat 17.137(2)

⁵² Nev. Rev. Stat 17.090 (2)

⁵³ Nev. Rev. Stat. 171.085 (3)

⁵⁴ Nev. Rev. Stat. 200.485 (10)

have-that right, they often are allowed. During the interview, it is the advocate's job to support the victim-survivor, remind them that they can break or end the interview, and also intervene if someone is threatening, yelling, or badgering them.

Arraignment: Formal court proceeding where charges are entered against the defendant and the defendant pleads either guilty or not guilty. This is generally when the Court will appoint an attorney for the defendant if they cannot afford one themselves. Victimsurvivors do not have to attend the arraignment. The results of the arraignment are public record. Advocates should know how to access court records in their community. Are they online? Who do you call at the court? Every jurisdiction will have its own procedures.

Case Setting Hearing/Status Check: The attorneys and judge meet to discuss the logistics of the case. For example, they exchange general case information, determine what information needs to be exchanged, what evidentiary issues need to be decided, exchange potential witness lists, etc. Results may be: set the case for trial, the defendant pleads guilty, or the case is continued to further complete discovery and/or negotiate a plea agreement. Status checks generally occurs about one to three weeks before trial date. Victim-survivors usually do not attend the case setting hearing.

Trial: If the defendant is in custody, a trial must occur within sixty days; if out of custody, the trial must occur within sixty days, unless the defendant applies to extend the deadline. Defendants often waive their right to a speedy trial to give their attorney more time to prepare for their case. In felony rape cases, it is not uncommon for the trial dates to be a year after the initial assault occurred.

Victim-survivors are only required to be present when testifying. Before testifying, victimsurvivors should meet with the prosecutor or the victim-witness staff to review what they will say in court and the questions they will be asked.

If asked, advocates should attend and offer support before and after the testimony. Additionally, suppose the victim-survivor is being harassed or threatened by the defendant or the defendant's friends or family. In that case, the advocate should talk to the bailiff about a secure waiting area and escorts from the courthouse to their transportation.

Sentencing: The defendant's punishment is formally presented based on their criminal conviction. The victim-survivor may attend and submit and/or give a statement about the impact of the crime.

Advocates can help the victim-survivor prepare the statement and practice presenting. Advocates should take care not to overstep and tell the victim-survivor what to say, but help with statement structure and grammatical editing. Each court may have a different system. Advocates should work with the prosecutors' office and the court to understand the process for submission of the victim impact statement.

Pre-sentence investigation report (PSI) is prepared in all felony sex crimes; thus it is likely that sentencing will not occur for several weeks after the trial to allow for the PSI to be drafted by Parole and Probation.

CIVIL LEGAL SYSTEM

The victim-survivor may want to initiate legal action in the civil system. In civil court, the standard of proof is "preponderance of the evidence," or more likely than not, that the complaint is true. Civil legal actions include divorce, custody, child support, and protection orders.

The Nevada Self-Help Center (<u>https://selfhelp.nvcourts.gov/</u>) is an excellent resource for advocates and victim-survivors. It provides step-by-step instructions on how to self-represent in court. Court advocates should become very familiar with this website and the processes therein. The site also provides links to all of the necessary forms and gives the deadlines for each.

Civil Protection Order – A victim-survivor may want to apply for a protection order to keep the other person away from them. Nevada offers protection orders against domestic violence, stalking/harassment, sexual assault, and harm to minors. A victim-survivor may qualify for several kinds of protection orders. The domestic violence protection order is the most common if intimate partner violence is the basis for seeking protection. If granted, a protection order can require the other party to stay away from the victim-survivor's home, work, school, or other places they frequent. The order can include a temporary custody order if the parties share children together. The order can also include protections for any pets.

Filing for a protection order can be a triggering event that escalates the other person's behavior. It is imperative that a victim-survivor engage in safety planning and is prepared for what might happen once the other person is served with a protection order. The rule of thumb is that a protection order should usually be based on domestic violence that occurred within the past 30-60 days, however, there is no exact timeline. A victim-survivor's safety is paramount, and timing the filing of the protection order should be done carefully.

The victim-survivor can submit an application for protection along with some other required forms to the local family court or justice court "ex parte". This means the judge

will review the application and make a decision without notifying the other party first. Judges may want to have a hearing with the applicant to ask questions, or may make a decision based just on the written application. In a few situations, the judge may set it for a hearing for the adverse party to attend before making a decision. Either way, the judge must make a decision within one judicial day after the application is filed.

The protection order forms allow the victim-survivor to provide their contact information confidentially, however, the adverse party will be able to see anything written on the application and the order. If the judge issues a protection order, the local Sheriff will have the adverse party served with copies of the application and order if they live in the jurisdiction.

A temporary protection order (issued ex parte) lasts up to 45 days. The applicant can request an extended order that would last up to 2 years. If requesting an extended order, the judge will have a hearing with both the victim-survivor and the adverse party so both parties can explain their position before the judge makes any decisions.

Anything granted in a protection order is ultimately only temporary in nature, and all terms will expire when the protection order ends. If victim-survivors are married to the other party or share children with them, they may need to seek a divorce, custody order, or some other kind of civil order that would last indefinitely.

Other Applications—On the Nevada Self-Help Center site, you will find applications for the following court processes:

- Divorce/Legal Separation/Annulment
- Custody, Paternity, and Child Support
- Guardianship
- Adoption/Termination of Parental Rights
- Name Changes

These forms are all public record. The adverse / opposing party will be able to see everything on these forms, including the victim-survivor's address and contact information. The victim-survivor must provide a mailing address so the adverse / opposing party knows where to serve their responses. If enrolled in the Confidential Address Program (CAP) that address can be provided on the forms. (For more information about the CAP can be found here.) If not, the victim-survivor can provide a PO Box or another physical address where they can receive mail. Of course any action automatically becomes a triggering event for safety planning discussions. **Service**—The next step is Service or serving the papers. All documents filed must be served on the adverse/opposing party. If the other party has an attorney, the documents must be served to the attorney.

It is the responsibility of whoever files the case to "serve" the adverse/opposing party; however, the victim-survivor cannot serve the paper personally. There are different options to serve papers.

- Someone over **18** who isn't involved with the case must serve the papers and fill out an "Affidavit of Service" stating when, where, and what was served. The Affidavit of Service must be filed with the court clerk's office.
- If the defendant does not have an address where they can be personally served, the victim-survivor can request permission from the court to serve them by "alternate service." This can include serving through email, text, social media, or any way that could get notice to the defendant.
- If defendant has no physical address and there is no possibility of contacting them through any means, the victim-survivor could request court permission to serve them through publication. If the court orders service by publication, the court order must direct the publication of the notice to be made in a newspaper (decided by the court) for a period of four weeks.

Responding—The main reason for serving the legal papers is to ensure the adverse/opposing party has the time to respond. They will file an answer stating why the application should be denied and what they are asking. The response will have to be filed with the court and the initiating party must be sent the paperwork.

Motions—During long cases, a party can file a motion for temporary relief/order such as Motion for Temporary Custody. Either party can file a motion. The other party should always respond and attend the court hearing. If not, the judge will usually rule in favor the party in attendance.

Orders—In a civil case, when the judge decides something, it is called an order. Often, the orders are written by one side, approved by the other, and submitted to the court; however, the orders must align with what the judge decided in court. Orders can be temporary or final. A temporary order will be in place until the judge decides on the final order. The only way to change a final order is to file a motion to re-open the case.

Fee Waivers—There will be various fees to file papers depending on what is filed and in what court. If a victim-survivor cannot afford to pay, they can apply for a fee waiver. They can fill out an "<u>Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis</u>" and turn that form in with the rest of their papers. Fee waivers are approved if a person is on public assistance, if their

income is less than 150% of federal poverty guidelines, if their basic expenses exceed their income, or if they have other compelling reasons. In most courts, the clerk will file the paperwork for no charge and then forward the fee waiver request to the judge for review. If the waiver isn't approved, the advocate should talk to NCEDSV about a Jan Evans Direct Assistance Fund application or a L.I.F.E. Microloan.

Judicial Discretion—Judicial discretion is defined as "The exercise of judgment by a judge or court based on what is fair under the circumstances and guided by the rules and principles of law."⁵⁵ This means that judges look at all of the facts in a case, including past behavior of the parties, employment, and decisions in past cases when making their decision. Judicial discretion is used often in civil cases. This is also why judges may rule differently in cases that advocates think have the same facts and so should have similar decisions made by the judge. As mentioned at the beginning of this guide, advocates should never tell a victim-survivor how a court should rule.

Legal Representation--As always, it is best to have a lawyer to help a victim-survivor through this process. The different legal aid agencies can help some victim-survivor with divorce, custody, and other legal actions. While these agencies can help some victim-survivors, there are always some that will not meet the eligibility requirements. As such, it is important that advocates and agencies develop relationships with local attorneys who may be willing to provide pro-bono services. And the Nevada State Bar also has referral programs to help find lawyers in good standing who practice in the jurisdiction.

LEGAL AID RESOURCES IN NEVADA Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada

725 E. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89104 702.386.1070 <u>www.lacsn.org</u> Service Area: Clark County and Southern Nye County Areas of Practice:

- Children's Attorney
- Domestic Violence: Temporary Protection Orders(TPOs), Divorce, Custody, Immigration
- Consumer Protection: Lease Break due to Domestic Violence/Sexual Assault/Stalking, Tenant Rights, Bankruptcy, Debt Collection
- Pro Bono Attorney

Nevada Legal Services

530 South 6th Street, Las Vegas, NV 89101 702.386.0404 or toll free 866.432.0404

⁵⁵ Black's Law Dictionary 208 (Brain A. Garner ed., second pocket ed., West 2001).

www.nevadalegalservices.org

Offices in Carson City, Elko, Las Vegas, Reno, and Yerington Service Area: Statewide Areas of Practice:

- Tenant Rights: Lease Break due to Domestic Violence/Sexual Assault/Stalking, Lease Break for Medical Reasons, Habitability (repairs & fixes), Security Deposits
- Consumer Rights: Bankruptcy, Debt Collection, Debt Collection Practices
- Public Benefits: Unemployment, Social Security, SNAP/TANF
- Pro Bono Attorney Program

Nevada Self Help Center

https://selfhelp.nvcourts.gov/

Legal forms and information for self-representation in civil cases.

Nevada State Bar Legal Referral Service

For individuals who do not qualify for pro bono legal services, the Nevada State Bar can help you find an attorney in your area.

https://nvbar.org/for-the-public/find-a-lawyer/lrs/

Volunteer Attorneys for Rural Nevadans

412 W. John Street, Suite C, Carson City, NV 89706 775.883.8278

www.varn.org

Areas of Practice:

- Domestic Violence Victim's Assistance Project: Emergency Legal Representation to extend or modify protections, Divorce, Custody, and Immigration
- Pro Bono Attorney Program

Washoe Legal Services

299 S. Arlington Ave, Reno, Nevada 89501 775.329.2727 www.washoelegalservices.org

Areas of Practice:

- Domestic Violence: Protection Orders, Divorce/Custody, and Immigration
- Housing/Consumer Protection: Eviction, Habitability (fix & repair)
- Pro Bono Attorney Program

PREPARING FOR COURT

Court Hearings—A vital part of an advocate's job is to help victim-survivors prepare for court. Every court has expectations about how their court will run and how people in the court will behave. Usually, these are unwritten rules that advocates will learn when they are accompanying victim-survivors.

Virtual Hearings – Litigants can attend many hearings by phone or video. This is becoming more standard court practice post-Covid, and may be how the judge prefers to handle hearings in general. If the victim-survivor is not comfortable being in a courtroom with the adverse / opposing party, they should contact the judicial staff and request to participate by phone or video instead if this is an option in that court.

Be on Time—Allow time for parking, traffic, or mishaps. If attending by phone / video, dial in or log in early to address any technical glitches that may occur. It might be helpful to do a practice run if there's time.

Dress for Court—First impressions matter very much in court, so victim-survivors should dress conservatively. While there usually isn't a "dress code," victim-survivors should not wear shorts, short/cut-off shirts, tank tops, hats, or sunglasses. If possible, slacks and a conservative button-up or pull-over shirt and a blazer or jacket are always good choices. Also, do not eat, chew gum, or read a book/newspaper. It is essential to turn off your cell phone.

Addressing the Court—Stand when the judge enters the room. Whenever a victimsurvivor speaks to the judge, they should use "Your Honor" or "Judge." The victim-survivor should be prepared to introduce themselves and their relationship to the case (applicant/plaintiff or adverse party/defendant). Speak clearly and loud enough for the judge and the other side to hear. Always be respectful and never interrupt the judge or other party.

Being Prepared—An advocate should help a victim-survivor outline what they want to say. If this is an evidentiary hearing or a TPO hearing, the victim-survivor should bring their evidence and witnesses. The victim-survivor should have a note pad to take notes. Bring all the papers for the case organized so you can refer to them if necessary.

Friends and Family—Victim-survivors should not bring their children to court unless ordered to by the judge. While friends and family may wish to come and support a victim-survivor, it may make a tense situation worse. Keep the support persons to one or two and definitely people who can remain quiet, respectful and supportive.

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROTECTION ORDER APPLICATION

Victim-survivors and advocates can usually find the application for a DV TPO online on the site for their jurisdiction's court or at the court clerk's office. They can also be found on the website of the <u>Nevada Supreme Court</u>. It is always recommended that advocates download copies and keep them in the office for walk-in clients and law enforcement requests for advocate services. All protection orders must be filed with the appropriate court. For a temporary order, the court rules on the application within 24 hrs. The court can also delay the ruling and order a hearing. If the applicant has filed for an extended order, the hearing must be held within 45 days.

In counties with more than 52,000 people, the court is required to provide 24-hour access to protection orders provided the adverse party has been arrested for domestic violence. Every jurisdiction has its own procedure. So, talk to your supervisor, local law enforcement, or the court clerk's office about how a victim-survivor can file an emergency temporary protection order in your community. The order will be served on the abusive party before they are released from custody. There is no cost for a DV TPO.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS WHEN APPLYING FOR DV POS.

DV PO offers several options to help support victim-survivors who leave a violent situation, including the removal/prohibition to buy firearms, child custody, and monetary support. These supports are not available in other protection orders. While a victim-survivor can ask the court for each of these special considerations, advocates should have conversations with the victim-survivor to help them make an informed decision and manage expectations.

SEPARATION VIOLENCE

Leaving is often the most dangerous time for a victim-survivor of domestic violence. In fact, research shows that victim-survivors who separate from their abusive partner have an increased risk of being murdered. ⁵⁶ Additionally, this risk increases if the victim-survivor is leaving for a new partner.⁵⁷

A protection order clearly signals to an abusive partner that a victim-survivor is taking their power back. It is common for abusive partners to increase their threats of violence, stalking, and other abusive behaviors when their partner leaves. The threats are not always against the victim-survivor. The threats can be against family, children, pets, and friends.

 ⁵⁶ Campbell, Jacquelyn C et al. "Risk factors for femicide in abusive relationships: results from a multisite case control study." *American journal of public health* vol. 93,7 (2003): 1089-97. doi:10.2105/ajph.93.7.1089
 ⁵⁷ *Ibid.*

Often threats are carried out, and the abusive partner physically attacks their partner. And in extreme cases, they kill their partner.

Domestic violence is one of the least reported crimes. According to local agencies, about 41% of domestic violence cases did not have law enforcement involvement. So, it is not surprising that law enforcement response to violations of a protection order isn't that high. There are many reasons why law enforcement statistics show low calls regarding violations, including victim-survivors' fear of the abusive partner, fear for family, friends, and children, and feelings of hopelessness that nothing will stop the abusive partner. This is why advocates need to work with victim-survivors about using protection orders. It is important to remember that not all victim-survivors will be in the place to push for enforcement. However, hopefully they will feel incrementally empowered to do so. It is important to encourage every step and listen as to why a victim-survivor is hesitant to enforce the order and help safety plan accordingly.

FIREARMS

As advocates should know, the presence of firearms increases the lethality risks in a violent relationship⁵⁸. As such, it makes sense that the removal of firearms from violent homes should be a part of protection order relief. Both Federal and Nevada laws provide this relief.

Nevada Revised Statutes prohibit a person who is subject to an extended protection order from buying or receiving a firearm while the order is in effect.⁵⁹ Additionally, a court *may* order the adverse party to surrender any firearms for the duration of the extended protection order.⁶⁰ This surrender is not automatic, the applicant must request it. The court must make a specific finding in the order because it is discretionary (up to the judge). Fellow staff should be able to tell you how your judges generally rule on firearms surrender requests.

If the court orders the surrender of firearms, the adverse party has 24 hours to comply and surrender the firearm to the ordered law enforcement agency or person designated by the court and file an affidavit and receipt of the sale or surrender with the court.⁶¹ If a judge does order the surrender of firearms to a particular person, this is often referred to as a "constructive" surrender. This means the adverse party must give the firearms to a third party to hold during the protection order period. Often, this is third person is a family

⁵⁸ Campbell, Jacquelyn C et al. "Risk factors for femicide in abusive relationships: results from a multisite case control study." *American journal of public health* vol. 93,7 (2003): 1089-97. doi:10.2105/ajph.93.7.1089

⁵⁹ Nev. Rev. Stat. 33.0305

⁶⁰ Nev. Rev. Stat. 33.031

⁶¹ Nev. Rev. Stat. 33.033

member or friend of the adverse party. While this may meet the letter of the law, it doesn't necessarily create safety for the victim-survivor.

It is important that advocates have a conversation about the benefits and risks of making the request for firearm removal. Asking for firearm removal can also be empowering and a key point of safety for a victim-survivor. It can also be dangerous.

First, if your jurisdiction doesn't usually order this relief, asking for it may escalate the violence as the victim-survivor is attempting to "take away" the adverse party's property. If the surrender order is a "constructive" surrender, the court may order the firearms to be surrendered to the adverse party's best friend or a family member, and it may never actually happen. Finally, the adverse party has 24 hours to surrender the firearms; a lot can happen in 24 hours. The victim-survivor knows the adverse party best and what has kept them safe before.

TEENS

In Nevada, a minor cannot file for a DV PO. The parent/guardian of the minor can apply for the protection order on their behalf against the teen's violent dating partner. Advocates should reach out to the court clerks and ask in which court a DV PO against a minor adverse party should be filed. It can be Family Court, Juvenile Court, or Justice Court. All of the same information and evidence are needed to obtain the order for a teen as is needed for an adult.

HOW TO ASSIST WITH CLIENTS WITHOUT UPL

The revised applications are very easy to follow. However, clients may still be unsure about how they should answer and ask the advocate for help or support. Remember, while advocates may see this as a very easy form, victim-survivors may have concerns about the risk of applying, leaving, and worried about how to survive. So, the simplest question may seem overwhelming.

Following is a sample protection order application and the additional forms needed for when asking for different relief in the protection order.

SEXUAL ASSAULT PROTECTION ORDER APPLICATION (SA TPO)

As with DV TPOs victim-survivors and advocates can usually find the application for a SA TPO online on the site for their jurisdiction's court, at the court clerk's office, or on the website of the <u>Nevada Supreme Court</u>. Advocates download copies and keep the applications in the office for walk-in clients and law enforcement requests for advocate services. All protection orders must be filed with the appropriate court.

Someone is eligible to file for a SA TPO if the applicant believes the [adverse party] subjects the applicant to sexual penetration, or forces another person to make a sexual penetration on him or herself or another, or on a beast, against the will of the victim or under conditions in which the [adverse party] knows or should know that the victim is mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his or her conduct. (NRS 200.366(1).

There is no cost to apply for a SA TPO. You are not required to file a police report or undergo a Sexual Assault Forensic Exam to file for a SA TPO. However, it may be difficult to receive the SA TPO without corroborating evidence. Corroborating evidence includes photos of property damage, bruises and injuries, messages, and statements from witnesses. If you have a statement from someone, try to have them available to come for the hearing.

Application

The applications for most protection orders, other than DV TPO, are on a combined form. This form includes—Stalking, Aggravated Stalking or Harassment; Protection of Children, and Sexual Assault orders.

The application is very easy to follow. However, victim-survivors who are dealing with the trauma of being sexually assault may need help organizing their thoughts. Remember, if someone is asking how to answer a question, be general, and provide answers that are applicable for anyone.

SAMPLE APPLICATION

A TPO can be filed in the county where the crime occurred, the county where the applicant lives, or where the adverse party lives.

COURT CODE: Court enters

		DISTRI COURT IN THE TOWNS	CT COURT	Vhere you are filing
	LJUSTICE	COURT IN THE TOWNS	COUNTY, NI	
			1	
Vict	im-Survivor's N	ame	CASE NO :	Entered by Court
	licant (print you			A
			DEPT:	Entered by Court
VS.				
Adv	sive Partner Nat erse Party (print t protection from	t the name of the person you		
	APPLICATI	ON FOR PROTECTIO	ON ORDER A	GAINST DOMESTIC
		VIOL	ENCE	
1.	Your informa	tion. (you are the "Applican	1t")	
	Your name:	Sally	Ann	Survivor
		(first)	(middle)	last)
	Interpreter Ne	eded? 🗖 No 🛛 Yes: (lang	uage?)	
2.	Who do you w	vant protection from? (this	person is the "A	dverse Party")
	Nama	Tohn	Taman	Dec
	Name:	John (first)	James (middle)	Doe(last)
	Is this person o	currently in jail or prison?	≤ No □Yes: (и	vhere?)
3.	Who needs pr	rotection? (\boxtimes check one or	both)	
		r child(ren) below. (fill out t at <u>http://selfhelp.nvcourts.g</u>		nd a UCCJEA Declaration,
		Child's Name	Date of Birth	Parents
		Callie Past	08/14/2015	Parent 1: Sally Survivor Parent 2: Alex Past
		Molly Doe	03/27/2018	Parent 1: Sally Survivor Parent 2: John Doe
				Parent 1: Sally Survivor
		Alex Doe	07/25/2020	Parent 2: John Doe
				Parent 1:
	1			
				Parent 2:

List all

children even if the adverse

party is not the parent.

Against Domestic Violence (Revised **September** 2020)

Page 1 of 8

4.	Why do you need protection from the person named above? (check all that apply)
	The adverse party committed an act of domestic violence against me or has
	threatened to commit an act of domestic violence against me.

The adverse party committed an act of domestic violence against <u>a minor child</u> or has threatened to commit an act of domestic violence against the child. I am the child's \boxtimes parent or \square legal guardian.

How are you related to the person you want protection from? (I check all that apply) 5.

You must be a current/former intimate partner, or be related by blood, adoption, or marriage, or be the parent or guardian of the adverse party's child to apply for a						
domestic violence protection order.						
*Do not use this form if you want protection from an adult sibling or an adult cousin.						
Adult siblings and cousins do not qualify to get a domestic violence protection order.						
You may be able to apply for a different kind of protection order.						

We	are	married	or	used	to	he	married.
	u v	mannea	OI.	unovu	.0	00	man wa.

We are dating or used to date.

We have children together.

Other: The adverse party is my (*specify relationship*):

6. Are there any other court cases that involve you and the adverse party?

- I No. Yes. If you know, list the case type, county, state, and case number: Divorce, Any County, NV Case Number D220317021 Criminal, Any County, NV Case Number 220131017x
- Firearms / Guns. Does the adverse party own a gun or have a gun in his/her possession or 7.

control? 🗋 No 🛛 Yes 🔲 I don't know Have firearm If you request an extended order, there will be a hearing where the judge may order the safety other person to surrender, sell, or transfer any firearm, and may prohibit the other conversation person from having a gun. If the other person needs a gun for work, he / she may be allowed to possess a firearm while on duty. This will be discussed at the hearing for an with victimextended order. survivor here © 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised September 2020)

Page 2 of 8

8. Most Recent Threat / Abuse / Incident.

Think about the **most recent** incident. These questions ask about the most recent incident only.

Approximate date it happened: 01/31/2022

City / State / Location where it happened: My Town, Any County, NV

Did the other person use or threaten to use a weapon? (*a weapon can be a gun, a knife, or* <u>any object</u> that is used to cause or threaten physical harm)?

D No.

X Yes. (describe what kind of weapon was used or threatened)

9 mm handgun

Did the police come?□ No⊠ YesWas anyone arrested?□ No⊠ Yes (who?) John Doe

What Happened? *Explain the most recent event and describe any injuries. Give specific and detailed information about the event. You can list past events on the next page. If you*

are filing on behalf of a child, include details about what happened to the child.

Police report or incident/event number, then it should be included here too.

It is always helpful to talk with the victim-survivor before they start writing this narrative. It will help them organize their thoughts better. Advocates may want to create a loose outline based on the conversation. It is probable that when the victim-survivor starts to write the narrative, they will remember details they didn't say in your conversation. It is completely normal for people who survived a traumatic event not to remember everything at

Advocates should help victim-survivors to use the appropriate words. If they say that John Doe hit me. Ask how did he hit you? Did he slap you? Punch you? Where did he hit you? Arm? Face? Stomach? Another example is if someone says their partner choked them. The technical word is strangled or strangulation. So only after the client mentions something should an advocate help provide the correct words.

Attach more pages if you need more room. (Pages 3a, 3b, 3c)

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

once.

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised September 2020)

Page 3 of 8

9. Past Threats / Abuse / Incident.

Think about any other times the person you want protection committed an act of domestic violence against you and/or the children. The following questions ask about any past incidents that may have happened.

Has there been abuse or threats of violence in the past?

 \square No (skip to the next page)

Yes (complete the sections on this page)

Approximate Date: 10/31/2021

What Happened?

It is good to

include the

if law

case number

enforcement

was called.

When working with a victim-survivor, advocates often suggest keeping a log of events. It isn't likely that the log will be admissible as evidence. But it does keep all of the information in a place in one place and can assist in writing narratives and other documents.

A log should include the date of the violent event, describe what happened, what actions and threats, any weapons used, if the police were called, the event number, if there was an arrest and/or charges.

Attach more pages if you need more room. (Pages 4a, 4b, 4c)

Approximate Date: ____

What Happened?

Attach more pages if you need more room. (Pages 4a, 4b, 4c)

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised September 2020)

Page 4 of 8

10. "	Tem	porary Protections Requested. (I check all that apply)
	Th	Do not list any confidential addresses. he other person will get a copy of this application and will see any addresses you write down.
If client asks for partner to have no contact with the	X	Prohibited Activities . The adverse party should not threaten, physically injure, or harass me and/or the minor child(ren), either directly or through someone acting on his/her behalf.
children, discuss how they will defend that request to the judge. If there is a custody order, think creatively about how there may still be contact. Set times to call using a pre-paid phone which is turned on only for calls. Is there a third person who can pick-	X	 Contact with You. The adverse party should: Not contact me at all, either in person, by phone/text, by email, or through social media. ☑ Contact me to discuss parenting issues only by:text I emailphone calls in writing other: Contact with Children. The adverse party should: ☑ Not contact the minor children at all, either in person, by phone/text, by email, or through social media. □ Contact the children by: text email phone calls in writing Current Residence. The adverse party should stay away from my current residence. Do you and the adverse party live together? No Yes If yes, whose name is listed on the lease/title? Joint lease
up and drop-off? This is a good time to discuss the potential for a lease break and safe housing options.		If yes, when did you start living together? 1/31/2017 Does the adverse party know where you live? No Yes If no, is your address confidential? No Yes (don't list your address) 1234 Anywhere Rd, Apt 22 Address Any My Town, NV 89715 Any City, State, Zip Code County This is a: It temporary address permanent address Do you and the adverse party live in the same complex/property/trailer park? No Yes No Yes Yes Yes My Town, NV 89715 County County This is a: It temporary address permanent address Do you and the adverse party live in the same complex/property/trailer park? No Should the Adverse Party stay away from the entire complex / property / trailer park? No Yes Yes Explain the distance and need for protection in that complex / property / trailer park: John Doe's brother lives in the complex. John Doe needs to stay away from the from NE parking lot and the apartment building and path to the apartment.

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised September 2020)

Page 5 of 8

Personal Belongings.

- □ <u>I need to get my belongings</u>. I want law enforcement to come with me to the adverse party's residence so I can pick up my belongings. The address I need to go to is (*list street address, apartment number, city, state, zip*):
- The other person needs to get their belongings. Law enforcement should come with the adverse party to my residence to pick up their belongings.

Work. The adverse party should stay away from my workplace.

Do you and the adverse party work at the same place? \boxtimes No \square Yes Is your work address confidential? \boxtimes No \square Yes (*do not write details below*)

ABC Store					
Employer		Employer			
1234 Main Street					
Address		Address			
My Town, NV 89XXX	Any				
City, State, Zip Code	County	City, State, Zip Code	County		

School / Day Care. The adverse party should stay away from my school and/or the child(ren)'s school/day care.

Is the school address confidential? 🛛 No 🔲 Yes (do not write details below)

Little Kiddos Day Care				
School/Day Care Name		School/Day Care Name		
5498 Education Way				
Address		Address		
My Town, NV 89XXX	Any	-		
City, State, Zip Code	County	City, State, Zip Code	County	

Other Places. The adverse party should stay away from the following places that I and/or the minor child(ren) go to regularly.

Survivor's Parents Location Name	Friendly Residence			
My Parents. We visit often	My children visit often Why?			
8546 Parental Support Ave	9462 Nice Place			
My Town, NV 89XXX Any City, State, Zip Code County	My Town, NV 89XXXAnyCity, State, Zip CodeCounty			

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised September 2020) If client asks for no contact with the children, discuss how they will defend that request to the judge. If there is custody order, think creatively about how there may still be contact. Set times to call using a pre-paid phone which is turned on only for calls. Is there a third person who can pickup and drop-off?

- Children / Custody Orders. I want temporary custody of the child(ren).
 you must complete a UCCJEA Declaration to give more information
 - It he adverse party should not have visitation at this time.
 - The adverse party should have visitation with the child(ren) as follows:
 - We already have a custody/visitation order that we should keep following.
 The order is from case (*case number*) ______. It was issued in (*county*) County in the State of _____.
- **Pets or Animals Safety.** The adverse party should be ordered not to threaten, physically injure or harass any pets/animals kept by me, the children, or the adverse party, either directly or through someone acting on his/her behalf.
- **Pets or Animals Possession.** I want to keep the pets/animals. The adverse party should be prohibited from taking the pets/animals either directly or through someone acting on his/her behalf.

About Extended Protection Orders:

This application automatically asks the judge to issue up to a 45 day temporary protection order without notifying the other person first. You will get a decision within 1 business day.

You can also ask for an extended order that could last for up to 2 years. If you do, the judge will set a hearing. You and the other person will have to appear in <u>court</u> and explain your side before the judge can extend the protection order.

11. Length of Protection Order.

I want an order up to 45-days only. Stop here and sign the next page.

☑ I want an order up to 45-days PLUS an extended order that could last up to 2 years. The extended order should require the adverse party to do the following in addition to the temporary requests I already asked for:

*You may have to fill out and file a financial form if you want the judge to grant you any kind of financial support.

- *Pay rent or mortgage payments for my place of residence.
- *Pay emergency household support for me.
- *Pay child support for the minor child(ren) we have together.
- ▶ *Pay for lost earnings and expenses incurred as a result of my attendance at any hearing concerning this application.
- *Pay any costs and fees I have spent in pursuing this case.

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised **September** 2020)

Page 7 of 8

☑ The judge should make the following long-term arrangement for the pets/animals owned by myself, the child(ren), and/or the adverse party (describe the pets/animals involved and who should take care of the pets/animals while an extended order is in effect)

2 Welsh Corgis, Myrtle and Wigglebottoms, and 1 cat, Dragon. Pets should stay with me and the children.

Other:

- **12.** UCCJEA Declaration. If you want the judge to grant you temporary custody of a child, fill out a UCCJEA Declaration and file it with this application.
- **13.** You may attach documents, pictures, or anything else that you would like the judge to look at and consider when reviewing your application. The Adverse Party will receive a copy of all documents/evidence you provide.

Describe what you are attaching: 1) Flashdrive with MP3 of threatening voicemails; 2) transcription of voicemails; 3) Pictures bruises; 4) police report of latest incident; 5) list past police reports

14. This document does not contain the personal information of any person as defined by NRS 603A.040.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATED_____, 20____.

Submitted by: (your signature)

(print your name) _____

VERIFICATION

I declare that I am the Applicant in the above-entitled action; that I have read the foregoing application and know the contents thereof; that the pleading is true of my own knowledge, except for those matters therein contained stated upon information and belief, and that as to those matters, I believe them to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Submitted by: (your signature)

(print your name) ____

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order Against Domestic Violence (Revised **September** 2020)

Page 8 of 8

CONFIDENTIAL PROTECTION ORDER INFORMATION Law Enforcement: Do not serve this sheet with documents to be delivered. Applicant: Print clearly all the information you know. This helps law enforcement locate and serve the Adverse Party.

		YOUR INF	ORMATION		
Your Name:	Sally (First)	Ann (Middle)		Survivor (Last)	🗋 м 🛛 f 🗋 о
Birthdate: <u>12</u> (MM)	/ <u>1</u> / <u>1995</u> (DD) (YY)	Social Security Number:	123 - 45	5 <u>- 6789</u> Race	: Mixed
Your Address: 1	234 Anywhere (Street Addre	Rd., Apt 22 ss) (Bldg	/Apt#)	My Town (City)	NV 89XXX (State) (Zip Code)
Mailing Address (If different)			g/Apt#)	(City)	(State) (Zip Code)
	5 D	212 Cell Phone:	a a	• • •	
Email Address:	sallysuvivo	or@email.com I p	refer to be notifi	ed of future court	dates by 🔀 email / 🔲 mail
The Adverse Par		se 🔲 ex-spouse 🔀 ex- w: (<i>explain</i>)			
Only fill out th	is section if there a	OTHER PROTH are other family members o order. If there are none	r household mer	mbers that you ask	ed to be protected under the
Name:	Callie (First)	Michelle (Middle)		Past (Last)	
	/ <u>14</u> / <u>2015</u> (DD) (YY)	Social Security Number:	234 - 56	5 - 7890 Race	: <u>Mixed</u>
The Adverse Par	ty is this person's:	parent 🗙 step-parent	ex-dating p	artner 🔲 sibling	other:
	• •	• • • • • • • • • • • •			
Name:	Molly (First)	Marie (Middle)		Doe (Last)	
Birthdate: 03 (MM)	/ <u>27</u> / <u>2018</u> (DD) (YY)	Social Security Number:	<u> 345 - 67</u>	7 - 8901 Race	: <u>Mixed</u>
The Adverse Par	ty is this person's:	X parent I step-parent	ex-dating p	artner sibling	other:
			• • • • • • •		
Name:	Alex (First)	Michael (Middle)		Doe (Last)	
Birthdate: 07 (MM)		Social Security Number:	456 - 78	3 - 9012 Race	: <u>Mixed</u>
The Adverse Par	ty is this person's:	parent step-parent	ex-dating p	artner sibling	other:
	• •				
Name:	(First)	(Middle)		(Last)	[M _ F _ O
Birthdate: 08 (MM)	_// (DD) (YY)	Social Security Number:		Race	:
The Adverse Par	ty is this person's:	X parent step-parent	ex-dating p	artner 🔲 sibling	other:
© 2020 Nevada	Supreme Court		E	omestic Violence	Protection Order Information

ADVERSE PARTY INFORMATION

	Name:	John (First)	James (Middle)	Doe (Last)					
	Other Name Us	sed:							
		(First)	()	Aiddle)	(Last)				
	Birthdate: 01 (MM		l Security Number: <u>789</u>	01 - 2345 Rad	ce:W				
	Height:5'9"	Ieight: <u>5'9"</u> Weight: <u>300</u> Hair Color: <u>brown</u> Eye Color: <u>green</u>							
	Home Address	: 7580 Right Here L (Street Address)	ane 123 (Bldg/Apt#)	My Town (City)	NV 89XXX (State) (Zip Code)				
	Is this	address difficult to find?	X No Yes: explain:						
	Mailing Addres (If different)	SS:(Street Address)	(Bldg/Apt#)	(City)	(State) (Zip Code)				
Would the	Other Likely A	ddress:			11.77 F. 25.000 (1999) (2007)				
adverse	Home Phone:	(Street Address)			(State) (Zip Code) Phone:				
party stay someplace	Employer:		Position:	Work Days:	Work Hours:				
else?	Work Address:								
Parents?		(Street Address)	(Bldg/Aj	ot#) (City)	(State) (Zip Code)				
Best friend?		Scars/Marks/Tattoos (Description and Location):							
Sibling?	Dragon tattoo on left forearm.								
	Vehicle Make:	Chevy Model:	Blazer Year: 20)19 License Plate Nu	mber/State: XYZ123				
	Have you e Do you hav Does the Ad Do you wor Is the Adve Is the Adve Does the Ad Does the Ad If yes 9 mm Does the Ad If yes	lverse Party have a histo, explain:	Party? Yes No Party? Yes No sh? Yes No sh? Yes No oblently when served? service? Image: Service? V Permit? Image: Service? Image: Service? to weapons? Image: Service? Image: Service? ion of weapon(s): 2 shot guns, and a tech ory of violent behavior or Image: Service of the	Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No 9	e/she speak?				
	Arres	sted 4 times for domes	tic violence						
			not write in this space. Fo						
	Issuing Cou	rt ORI: NV		Court Cas	e Number:				
	© 2020 Nevada	a Supreme Court		Domestic Violenc	e Protection Order Information				

This needs to be filled out if the client is asking for custody of the children. If there is already a custody and support order, this doesn't need to be filled out unless the client is looking to change the order.

DISTRICT COURT

JUSTICE COURT IN THE TOWNSHIP OF My Town

Any COUNTY, NEVADA

Sally Survivor Applicant (print your name above), vs.	CASE NO.: DEPT:
John Doe Adverse Party (print the name of the person you want protection from above).	

UCCJEA DECLARATION

This document will be sealed and kept confidential if requested in section 9

1. Children.

COURT CODE: _____

Child 1:		Molly	Marie	Doe	03/27/2018
	First		Middle	Last	DOB
	1234	Anywhere Rd		Mv Tow	n, NV 89XXX
	Address				City, State, Zip Code
33.71		al	······································	7/2018	
	and does	the child live wi	ing here? (<i>date</i>) $\frac{3/2}{2}$ th? \square Me \square Some	$\frac{7/2010}{2000}$	
VV I	io uoes	the child live wi		cone ense (nume)_	
Child 2		Alex	Michael	Doe	07/25/2020
Child 2.	First	THEN	Middle	Last	DOB
	1234	Anvwhere Rd		My Tow	n, NV 89xxx
	Address	Allywhere Rd			City, State, Zip Code
			ing here? (<i>date</i>) <u>07/</u>		
Wł	10 does	the child live wi	th? 🛛 Me 🗖 Some	eone else (<i>name</i>) _	
Child 3:			Middle		Al Standilline and
	First		Middle	Last	DOB
	Address				City, State, Zip Code
33/1	oon did	the shild start live	ing here? (date)		
			th? \square Me \square Some		
VV 1	io does	the ennumve wi		cone ense (name) _	
© 2020 Nevada Su	mrama (Sourt	Uniform Child	Custody Invigdiation	Enforcement Act Declaration
	aprenie (Jourt	(DV Protection		Enforcement Act Declaration
					(Revised September 2020)
			Page 1 of 3		and of "E

2. Nevada Residence. How long have the children lived in Nevada? (⊠ check one)
 ☑ The children have lived in Nevada for the past six months, or since birth.

 $\hfill \hfill \hfill$

3. **Past Residences.** List the other places the children have lived in the last 5 years. *Do not include where the children are living now.*

	Who the Child Lived With	City & State Where the Child Lived	Dates Child Lived There (mo/yr – mo/yr)
Examples \rightarrow	Sue Jones (mom)	Las Vegas, NV	i.e., 5/18-9/18
Past Residence:			
Past Residence:			
Past Residence:			

If the children lived with anyone <u>other than the parents</u> in the last 5 years, write their names and current addresses here:

It is important to be upfront and	4. Department of Family Services (".	2	ervices ("CPS"). Has
honest about CPS involvement. The court will know the answer	DFS / CPS been involved with your \Box No. \Box Yes. When: <u>11/07/2021</u>		Allan Adams
already.	5. Current Custody Case. Is there a c	rustody order? (⊠ check one)	
	 No. Yes, there is a current custody or <i>number</i>) County in the State of 	It was issued in (<i>county</i>))
	6. Your Participation in Other Cases case concerning the child as a party,	5	
	☑ No. ☑ Yes, I have participated in the formula in the	blowing cases concerning the	child (list the state, the
	court name, the case number an	0	`
© 2	2020 Nevada Supreme Court	Uniform Child Custody Jurisdi (DV Protection Order) Page 2 of 3	ction Enforcement Act Declaration (Revised September 2020)

- 7. Your Knowledge of Other Cases that You Did Not Participate In. Do you know of any other case concerning the child that could affect this case, such as other custody cases, protection order cases, or adoptions/terminations? (\boxtimes *check one*)
 - 🗙 No.
 - Yes, the following cases that could affect this case (*list the state, the court name, the parties involved, the case number and the type of case*):
- 8. Persons Other Than You or the Other Party Who Can Claim Custody / Visitation. Is there anyone other than you or the adverse party who has custody of the child or who can claim a right to custody or visitation with the child? (\boxtimes check one)
- This could be grandparents or other family who have cared for the children.
- 🗙 No.
- ☐ Yes, the following people have custody or can claim custody/visitation of the child: (*list names and addresses of anyone who claims custody/visitation rights*):
- 9. Confidentiality. Would your health/safety/liberty or the child's health/safety/liberty be in danger if the information in this document is released to the adverse party? (⊠ check one)
 - □ Yes. This document should be sealed pursuant to NRS 125A.385(5). *Note: the court may release this information to the other party after a hearing if the court orders the disclosure.*
 - \boxtimes No. This document may be provided to the adverse party.
- 10. This document does not contain the personal information of any person as defined by NRS 603A.040.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

DATED_____, 20____.

Submitted By: (your signature)

(print your name) _____

© 2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction Enforcement Act Declaration (DV Protection Order)

(Revised September 2020)

Page 3 of 3

FDF Name: <u>Sally Survivor</u> Address: <u>1234 Anywhere Rd. Apt</u>

Phone: 775-XXX-XXXX Email: sallysurvivor@email.com Attorney for ______ Nevada State Bar No._____ If someone is asking for financial support for rent, car payments, or child support, this form must be filled out. And remind the client that the adverse party will receive a copy of this. Make sure any confidential information isn't included and be truthful.

_ Judicial District Court

My Town , Nevada

Sally Survivor Plaintiff, vs. John Doe	Case No Dept
Defendant.	

GENERAL FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM

- A. Personal Information:
 - 1. What is your full name? (first, middle, last) Sally Ann Survivor

B. Employment Information:

1. Are you currently employed/ self-employed? (Check one)

□ No

 \square Yes If yes, complete the table below. Attached an additional page if needed.

Date of Hire	Employer Name	Job Title	Work Schedule (days)	Work Schedule (shift times)
7/2019	Home Health Care Inc	Care Giver	M-F	7 am-3 pm

2. Are you disabled? (D check one)

\checkmark	No
	Yes

If yes, what is your level of disability? ______ What agency certified you disabled? ______ What is the nature of your disability? ______

C. Prior Employment: If you are unemployed or have been working at your current job for less than 2 years, complete the following information.

Prior Employer:	Date of Hire:	Date of Termination:
Reason for Leaving:		

Rev. 8-1-2014

Page 1 of 8

Monthly Personal Income Schedule

A. Year-to-date Income.

As of the pay period ending 3/31/2022 my gross year to date pay is 7800

B. Determine your Gross Monthly Income.

Hourly Wage

\$15.00	×	10.00	=	\$000000	×	52	=	\$31,200.00	÷	12	=	\$2,600.00
Hourly Wage		Number of hours worked per week		Weekly Income		Weeks		Annual Income		Months		Gross Monthly Income

Annual Salary

Annual Income	÷	12 Months	=	\$0.00 Gross Monthly Income
------------------	---	--------------	---	-----------------------------------

C. Other Sources of Income.

Source of Income	Frequency	Amount	12 Month Average
Annuity or Trust Income			
Bonuses			
Car, Housing, or Other allowance:			
Commissions or Tips:			
Net Rental Income:			
Overtime Pay			
Pension/Retirement:			
Social Security Income (SSI):			
Social Security Disability (SSD):			
Spousal Support			
Child Support	Monthly	\$250.00	\$250.00
Workman's Compensation			
Other:			
Total A	verage Other Income	Received	\$250.00
Total Average Gross Monthly Inc	ome (add totals from	B and C above)	\$2,850.00

Page 2 of 8

D. Monthly Deductions

If the client is self-employed, this information can be found in their income tax. They will most likely need to show bank statements to verify income.

		Type of Deduction	Amount
	1.	Court Ordered Child Support (automatically deducted from paycheck)	
Most of this	2.	Federal Health Savings Plan	
information will be	3.	Federal Income Tax	99.00
found on a paycheck stub. Applicant will have to submit 3 pay	4.	Health Insurance Amount for you: For Opposing Party:	0.00
	5.	Life, Disability, or Other Insurance Premiums	
stubs.	6.	Medicare	19.00
stubs.	7.	Retirement, Pension, IRA, or 401(k)	
	8.	Savings	
	9.	Social Security	80.00
	10.	Union Dues	
	11.	Other: (Type of Deduction)	
		Total Monthly Deductions (Lines 1-11)	198.00

Business/Self-Employment Income & Expense Schedule

A. Business Income:

What is your average gross (pre-tax) monthly income/revenue from self-employment or businesses? \$0.00

B. Business Expenses: Attach an additional page if needed.

Type of Business Expense	Frequency	Amount	12 Month Average
Advertising			
Car and truck used for business			
Commissions, wages or fees			
Business Entertainment/Travel			
Insurance			
Legal and professional			
Mortgage or Rent			
Pension and profit-sharing plans			
Repairs and maintenance			
Supplies			
Taxes and licenses (include est. tax payments)			
Utilities			
Other:			
	Total Average E	Business Expenses	0.0

Page 3 of 8

Personal Expense Schedule (Monthly)

A. Fill in the table with the amount of money **you** spend <u>each month</u> on the following expenses and check whether you pay the expense for you, for the other party, or for both of you.

Expense	Monthly Amount I Pay	For Me	Other Party	For Both
Alimony/Spousal Support				
Auto Insurance		~		
Car Loan/Lease Payment	100.00	1		
Cell Phone	100.00	1		
Child Support (not deducted from pay)				
Clothing, Shoes, Etc	50.00	1		
Credit Card Payments (minimum due)	100.00	1		
Dry Cleaning				
Electric	100.00	1		
Food (groceries & restaurants)	400.00			√
Fuel	200.00	√		
Gas (for home)	20.00	√		
Health Insurance (not deducted from pay)	250.00	1		
НОА				
Home Insurance (if not included in mortgage)	19.00			√
Home Phone				
Internet/Cable	150.00			1
Lawn Care				
Membership Fees				
Mortgage/Rent/Lease	800.00			1
Pest Control				
Pets	200.00	1		
Pool Service				
Property Taxes (if not included in mortgage)				
Security				
Sewer				
Student Loans				
Unreimbursed Medical Expense				
Water				
Other:				
Total Monthly Expenses	2,489.00			

Page 4 of 8

Household Information

A. Fill in the table below with the name and date of birth of each child, the person the child is living with, and whether the child is from this relationship. Attached a separate sheet if needed.

	Child's Name	Child's DOB	Whom is this child living with?	Is this child from this relationship?	Has this child been certified as special needs/disabled?
1 st	Callie Past	8/14/15	Me	No	No
2 nd	Mollie Doe	3/27/18	Me	Yes	No
3 rd	Alex Doe	7/25/20	Me	Yes	No
4 th					

B. Fill in the table below with the amount of money you spend each month on the following expenses for each child.

Type of Expense	1 st Child	2 nd Child	3 rd Child	4 th Child
Cellular Phone				
Child Care		300.00	300.00	
Clothing	50.00	50.00	50.00	
Education				
Entertainment				
Extracurricular & Sports				
Health Insurance (if not deducted from pay)	100.00	100.00	100.00	
Summer Camp/Programs				
Transportation Costs for Visitation				
Unreimbursed Medical Expenses				
Vehicle				
Other:				
Total Monthly Expenses	150.00	450.00	450.00	0.00

C. Fill in the table below with the names, ages, and the amount of money contributed by all persons living in the home over the age of eighteen. If more than 4 adult household members attached a separate sheet.

Name	Age	Person's Relationship to You (i.e. sister, friend, cousin, etc)	Monthly Contribution

Page 5 of 8

Personal Asset and Debt Chart

Line	Description of Asset and Debt Thereon	Gross Value		Total Amount Owed		Net Value	Whose Name is on the Account? You, Your Spouse/Domestic Partner or Both
1.	Car	\$5,000.00	-	\$2,000.00	=	\$ 3,000.00	Mine
2.	Car	\$6,000.00	-	\$2,000.00	=	\$ 4,000.00	Both
3.		\$	-	\$	=	\$ 0.00	
4.		\$	-	\$	I	\$ 0.00	
5.		\$	-	\$	-	\$ 0.00	
6.		\$	-	\$	-	\$ 0.00	
7.		\$		\$	=	\$ 0.00	
8.		\$		\$	Ξ	\$ 0.00	
9.		\$	-	\$	=	\$ 0.00	
10.		\$	-	\$	=	\$ 0.00	
11.		\$		\$	=	\$ 0.00	
12.		\$	-	\$	Э	\$ 0.00	
13.		\$	-	\$	=	\$ 0.00	
14.		\$	-	\$	=	\$ 0.00	
15.		\$		\$	=	\$ 0.00	
	Total Value of Assets (add lines 1-15)	\$11,000.00	-	\$4,000.00	Ш	\$7,000.00	

A. Complete this chart by listing all of your assets, the value of each, the amount owed on each, and whose name the asset or debt is under. If more than 15 assets, attach a separate sheet.

List cars, houses, furniture, etc.

B. Complete this chart by listing all of your unsecured debt, the amount owed on each account, and whose name the debt is under. If more than 5 unsecured debts, attach a separate sheet.

Line #	Description of Credit Card or Other Unsecured Debt	Total Amount owed	Whose Name is on the Account? You, Your Spouse/Domestic Partner or Both
1.	Amazon	\$ 2,000.00	Both
2.	Via	\$ 2,000.00	me
3.		\$	
4.		\$	
5.		\$	
6.		\$	
Tota	l Unsecured Debt (add lines 1-6)	\$ 4,000.00	

Page 6 of 8

CERTIFICATION

Attorney Information: Complete the following sentences:

1.	I (have/have not) have not	_retained an attorney for this case.
2.	As of the date of today, the attorney has been paid	a total of \$ on my behalf.
3.	I have a credit with my attorney in the amount of \$	
4.	I currently owe my attorney a total of \$,

5. I owe my prior attorney a total of \$ _____

IMPORTANT: Read the following paragraphs carefully and initial each one.

 \underline{SAS} I swear or affirm under penalty of perjury that I have read and followed all instructions in completing this Financial Disclosure Form. I understand that, by my signature, I guarantee the truthfulness of the information on this Form. I also understand that if I knowingly make false statements I may be subject to punishment, including contempt of court.

SAS I have attached a copy of my 3 most recent pay stubs to this form.

I have attached a copy of my most recent YTD income statement/P&L statement to this form, if self-employed.

I have not attached a copy of my pay stubs to this form because I am currently unemployed.

Signature

Date

Page 7 of 8

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby declare under the penalty of perjury of the State of Nevada that the following is true and correct:

That on *(date)*, service of the General Financial Disclosure Form was made to the following interested parties in the following manner:

□ Via 1st Class U.S. Mail, postage fully prepaid addressed as follows:

□ Via Electronic Service, in accordance with the Master Service List, pursuant to NEFCR 9, to:

□ Via Facsimile and/or Email Pursuant to the Consent of Service by Electronic Means on file herein to:

Executed on the _____ day of _____, 20___.

Signature

Page 8 of 8

			CE COURT OF THE F Any			НР
	Ap vs. <u>Joł</u> Ad	m Doe	t the name of the person you	DEPT:	D.:	
	1.	Your name: _	ation (you are the "App.	Maria (middle)	Sur (last)	vivor ?)?
		Name:	(first)	James (middle)	D (last)	loe
If the client has children and is concerned for their safety, they should list	3.	⊠ Me. □ Minor chi	brotection (check all than ld (see definition on bott wing household members	om of page 2).	hildren not include	d in definition
them here.			Name	Date of Birth	Relationship to Applicant	Relationship to Adverse Party

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 1 of 8

4. Why do you need to be protected from the person named above (you must check one)?

□ The Adverse Party committed acts of stalking or aggravated stalking against me. *Definition of stalking, aggravated stalking and harassment*:

Stalking: A person commits the crime of stalking when, without lawful authority, that person willfully or maliciously engages in a course of conduct directed towards a victim that would cause a reasonable person under similar circumstances to feel terrorized, frightened, intimidated, harassed or fearful for his or her immediate safety or the immediate safety of a family or household member, and that actually causes the victim to feel terrorized, frightened, intimidated, harassed or fearful for his or her immediate safety or the immediate safety of a family or household member. NRS 200.575(1)

Aggravated Stalking: A person who commits the crime of stalking and in conjunction therewith threatens the person with the intent to cause the person to be placed in reasonable fear of death or substantial bodily. NRS 200.575(2)

Harassment: A person commits harassment when: (a) Without lawful authority, the person knowingly threatens: (1) To cause bodily injury in the future to the person threatened or to any other person; (2) To cause physical damage to the property of another person; (3) To subject the person threatened or any other person to physical confinement or restraint; or (4) To do any act which is intended to substantially harm the person threatened or any other person with respect to his or her physical or mental health or safety; **and** (b) The person by words or conduct places the person receiving the threat in reasonable fear that the threat will be carried out. NRS 200.571

The Adverse Party committed a sexual assault on me.

Definition of sexual assault: A person commits sexual assault if they subject another person to sexual penetration, or forces another person to make a sexual penetration on himself or herself or another, or on a beast, against the will of the victim or under conditions in which the perpetrator knows or should know that the victim is mentally or physically incapable of resisting or understanding the nature of his or her conduct. NRS 200.366

Protection of Children: The parent or guardian of a child may petition any court of competent jurisdiction on behalf of the child for a temporary or extended order against a person who is 18 years of age or older and who the parent or guardian reasonably believes has committed or is committing a crime involving: (a) Physical or mental injury to the child of a nonaccidental nature; or (b) Sexual abuse or sexual exploitation of the child. NRS 33.400

Are you applying on	behalf of a minor child?	🗆 No	L Yes

(first)

Child's name:

(last)

As you complete the application, please keep in mind that you are filling in the questions as they pertain to the actions/incident committed upon the child.

(middle)

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 2 of 8

This application should not be used if the sexual assault was committed by spouse, former spouse, or intimate partner or former intimate partner. Use the DV TPO.

The blood or marriage relationships include siblings, cousins, in-laws, etc.	5.	 How do you know the person you need protection from (<i>check all that apply</i>)? We are related by blood or marriage. Explain
	6.	Are there any other <i><u>current</u></i> or <i>prior</i> court cases that involve you <u>and</u> the Adverse Party in any court?
		 No. Yes. If you know, please list the case type, county, state, and case number:
	7.	Firearms / Guns. Does the Adverse Party own a gun or have a gun in his/her possession or control?
		□ No □ Yes
	8.	Most Recent Event. Think about the most recent event. These questions ask about the most recent event only.
		Approximate date it happened: 2/14/2022
		City / State / Location where it happened: My Town, Any County, NV
		Did the other person use or threaten to use a weapon? \square No \square Yes.
		What Happened? Explain the most recent event and describe any injuries. Give specific and detailed information about the event. You can list past events on the next page. If you are filing on behalf of a child, include details about what happened to the child. Advocates can assist the victim-survivor in writing this section by help talking through what happened and helping them create an outline. Also, advocates can help the victim-survivor use the appropriate words for body parts and acts. It is important that the description is as accurate as possible.
	©20	20 Nevada Supreme Court Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 3 of 8

Attach more pages if you need more room (pages 4a, 4b, 4c).

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 4 of 8

9. Past Event(s).

Think about any other times the person you want protection from threatened or abused you and/or the child/children. The following questions ask about any past events that may have happened.

Approximate Date: ______ What Happened:

Was law enforcement informed?

10. Law enforcement involvement.

🗆 No 🛛 Yes

a. If so, please provide a copy of the police/incident report.

Was anyone arrested? X No Ves (Who):_

Is the Adverse Party in jail? 🛛 No 🔲 Yes

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 5 of 8

11. Temporary Protections Requested (check all that apply).

Do not list any confidential addresses. The other person will get a copy of this application and will see any addresses you write down.

- Prohibited Activities. The Adverse Party should not threaten, physically injure, or harass me and/or the minor child, either directly or through someone acting on his/her behalf.
- No Contact or Restricted Contact. The Adverse Party should not contact me and/or the minor child at all, either in person, by phone / text, by email or through social media.
- Current Residence. The Adverse Party should stay away from my current residence.

	Cu	rrent Residence. The Adverse Party	should stay away fro	m my current residence.						
	Do	you and the Adverse Party live together? $igsquare$ No $\hfill U$ Yes								
	If y	/es, whose name is listed on the lease/title?								
	Do	Does the Adverse Party know where you live? 🔲 No 🛛 🛛 Yes								
	If no, is your address confidential? X No Yes (don't list your address)									
	612 Anywhere Rd, Apt 213									
		Address								
		My Town, NV 89XXX	Any							
		City, State, Zip Code	County							
you a	nd th	e Adverse Party live in the same com	plex/property/trailer	park?						
	No. Should the Adverse Party stay away from the entire complex/property/trailer									
		park? 🗖 No 🗖 Yes								
\mathbf{X}	Yes.	. If so, explain the distance and need for protection in that complex/property/trailer								
		park:	8997	2440 0001 2460 15501						
		Adverse Party should 100 yards from my apartment and the adjacent parking lot.								

Personal Belongings.

Do

<u>I need to get my belongings</u>. I want law enforcement to come with me to the Adverse Party's residence so I can pick up my belongings. The address I need to go to is (*list street address, apartment number, city, state, zip*):

The other party needs to get his/her belongings. Law enforcement should come with the Adverse Party to my residence to pick up his/her belongings.

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 6 of 8

Work. The Adverse Party should stay away from my workplace.

Do you and the Adverse Party work at the sa	ame place? 🛛 No 🗖 Yes
Is your work address confidential?	☐ Yes (do not write details below)
Happy Place Employment Employer	Employer
6753 Employment Way Address	Address
My Town, NV 89XXXAnyCity, State, Zip CodeCounty	City, State, Zip Code County

School/Daycare. The Adverse Party should stay away from my school and/or the child's school/daycare.

Is the school/daycare address confidential? \Box No \Box Yes (do not write details below)

School/Daycare	
Address	

City, State, Zip Code

School/Daycare

City, State, Zip Code

Address

Other Places. The Adverse Party should stay away from the following places that I and/or the minor children go to regularly.

County

Location		Location	
Why?		Why?	
Address		Address	
City, State, Zip Code	County	City, State, Zip Code	County
			D () 0 1

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

County

Page 7 of 8

About Extended Protection Orders:

This application automatically asks the judge to issue up to a 45-day temporary protection order without notifying the other person first.

You can also ask for an extended order that could last for up to 2 years. If you do, the judge will set a hearing. You and the other person will have to appear in court and explain your side before the judge can extend the protection order.

- 12. Length of Protection Order.
 - I want an order up to 45 days only.
 - X I want an order up to 45 days PLUS an extended order that could last up to 2 years.
- 13. Other Exhibits. You may attach documents, pictures, or anything else that you would like the judge to look at and consider when reviewing your application. The Adverse Party will receive a copy of all documents/evidence you provide. Describe what you are attaching:

Documentation or transcripts of phone calls by the adverse party; Notes or written threats left by the adverse party; Pictures of property damage caused by the adverse party; Any other written documents that help to support your application; Police Report

14. This document does not contain the personal information of any person as defined by NRS 603A.040.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct. Submitted by:____

Dated , 20 ____

(your signature)

(print your name)

VERIFICATION

I declare that I am the applicant in the above-entitled action; that I have read the foregoing application and know the contents thereof; that the pleading is true of my own knowledge, except for those matters therein contained stated upon information and belief, and that as to those matters, I believe them to be true. I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated , 20 . Submitted by:

(your signature)

(print your name)

©2020 Nevada Supreme Court

Application for Protection Order (Revised October 2020)

Page 8 of 8

29